A REGULAR MEETING
Of The
TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT AND POWER BOARD
Will Be Held On
Tuesday, September 25, 2018
At
5:15 p.m.
In The

COMMISSION CHAMBERS
(2™ floor, Governmental Center)
400 Boardman Avenue

Traverse City Light and Power will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services,
such as signers for the hearing impaired and audio tapes of printed materials being considered at
the meeting, to individuals with disabilities at the meeting/hearing upon notice to Traverse City
Light and Power. Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact
the Light and Power Department by writing or calling the following.

Jennifer St. Amour
Administrative Assistant
1131 Hastings Street
Traverse City, MI 49686
(231) 932-4543

Traverse City Light and Power Posting Date: 9-21-18
1131 Hastings Street 3:00 p.m.
Traverse City, MI 49686

(231) 922-4940



Light and Power Board 2 September 25, 2018
Regular Meeting

AGENDA
Pledge of Allegiance

1. Roll Call

2. Disclosure of Recusal

3. Consent Calendar

The purpose of the consent calendar is to expedite business by grouping non-controversial items together
to be dealt with by one Board motion without discussion. Any member of the Board, staff or the public
may ask that any item on the consent calendar be removed therefrom and placed elsewhere on the agenda
Jor full discussion. Such requests will be automatically respected. If an item is not removed from the
consent calendar, the action noted in parentheses on the agenda is approved by a single Board action
adopting the consent calendar.

a. Approval of Agenda.

b. Consideration of approving minutes of the Regular Meeting of August 14, 2018.
(Approval Recommended (p.4)

c. Consideration of approving a Confirming Contract with Cintas Corporation. (Approval
Recommended) (Arends) (p.8)

d. Consideration of approving a purchase order for relay control panels for the Parsons
Switching Station Project. (Approval Recommended) (Dixon) (p.9)

4. Unfinished Business

a. Consideration of scheduling a Public Hearing October 9, 2018 regarding rate adjustments
to be effective November 1, 2018. (Myers-Beman) (p.12)

5. New Business

a. Consideration of authorizing the Executive Director to execute a Letter of Authorization
with MPPA for renewable energy. (Arends) (p.36)

b. Consideration of a request from the City of Traverse City regarding the lighting
component of the Hickory Hills Recreational Area Improvement Project. (Colburn)
(p-45)

G Consideration of approving a Construction Contract for the Parsons Switching Station

Project. (Chartrand) (p.49)

6. Reports and Communications

a. From Legal Counsel.



Light and Power Board 3 September 25, 2018
Regular Meeting

a. From Staff.

1. Discussion of On-Bill Financing. (Hardy) (p.52)
2. Electronic Board packets presentation. (St. Amour/Menhart) (video)

b. From Board.

7. Public Comment

a. General.

/js




TRAVERSE CITY
LIGHT AND POWER BOARD

Minutes of Regular Meeting
Held at 5:15 p.m., Commission Chambers, Governmental Center
Tuesday, August 14, 2018

Board Members -
Present: Pat McGuire, Elysha Davila, Ross Hammersley, Amy Shamroe, Tim
Werner, John Taylor
Absent: Paul Heiberger
Ex Officio Member -
Present: Marty Colburn, City Manager
Others: Tim Arends, Daren Dixon, Scott Menhart, Karla Myers-Beman, Kelli
Schroeder, Tony Chartrand, Jacob Hardy, Mark Watson, Jennifer J. St.
Amour

The meeting was called to order at 5:15 p.m. by Chairman McGuire.

Item 2 on the Agenda being Disclosure of Recusal — None

Chairman McGuire made a motion to add item f. to the Consent Calendar, approving a purchase
order for transformers from ABB. Seconded by Hammersley.

CARRIED unanimously.

Item 3 on the Agenda being Consent Calendar

Moved by Shamore, seconded by Hammersley, that the following actions, as recommended on
the Consent Calendar portion of the Agenda, be approved:

a. Approval of Agenda
b. Minutes of the Regular Meeting of July 10, 2018.

C. Approving the corrective action plan submission regarding Traverse City Light &
Power’s pension system to the State of Michigan Department of Treasury.

d. Authorizing a Letter of Agreement with the Utility Workers Union of America, AFL-CIO
Local No. 295.

e. Approving a partial material purchase for the Parsons Switching Station project.

f. Consideration of approving a purchase order for eight potential transformers to be used
for the Parsons Switching Project.

CARRIED unanimously.



TCL&P Regular Board Meeting Minutes 2

Items Removed from the Consent Calendar

None.

Item 4 on the Agenda being Unfinished Business

a.

Consideration of approving the 2018 Strategic Plan.
The following individuals addressed the Board:

Tim Arends, Executive Director

Karla Myers-Beman, Controller

Daren Dixon, Operations Manager

Scott Menhart, Mgr. of Telecom & Technology

Kelli Schroeder, Mgr. of Human Resources & Communications
Jacob Hardy, Key Accounts/Energy Technician

The following individuals from the Public addressed the Board:

Elizabeth Dell, 117 E. 10" St., ratepayer

Kate Madigan, 400 Boughey St., ratepayer

Mayor James Carruthers, 218 W. Eleventh St., ratepayer
Woody Smith, 502 Fifth St., ratepayer

Ann Rogers, 1236 Peninsula Dr., ratepayer

Greg Reisig, NMEAC, non-ratepayer

Dave Petrov, 9988 Riley Rd., non-ratepayer

Dr. Lisa Del Buono, 1800 Nelson Rd., non-ratepayer
Suzannah Tobin, 502 Fifth St., ratepayer

Maureen Voss, 727 Washington St., ratepayer

Jeff Gibbs, Benzie County, non-ratepayer

Russell Schindler, 1123 Front St., ratepayer

Bob Eichenlaub, 531 Randolph St., ratepayer

Ric Evans, Groundwork Center for Resilient Communities

August 14, 2018

Moved by Shamroe, seconded by Hammersley, that the Board adopt the Traverse City

Light & Power Strategic Plan — 2018 as amended.

YES — Taylor, Davila, Hammersley, Werner, Shamroe
NO — McGuire

CARRIED.

Item 5 on the Agenda being New Business

g.

Consumers Energy 46kV Rebuild.
The following individuals addressed the Board:

Daren Dixon, Operations Manager
Tim Arends, Executive Director

Moved by Shamroe, seconded by Werner, that the Board authorizes the Chairman and
Secretary to enter into an hourly Construction Agreement with CC Power, LLC in an




TCL&P Regular Board Meeting Minutes 3 August 14,2018
amount $83,700, more or less, to rebuild & relocate overhead lines in the right-of-way
east of Peninsula Dr. between Eastern Ave. and North Orchard Dr. subject to approval as
to substance by the Executive Director and as to form by General Counsel.

The following individuals addressed the Board:
Tom Lemay, 711 Calvin Dr., ratepayer

CARRIED unanimously.

Item 6 on the Agenda being Reports and Communications

a. From Legal Counsel.
b. From Staff.
1. MPPA Update.
The following individuals addressed the Board:
Tim Arends, Executive Director

2. Discussion of potential renewable energy project on TCL&P owned property on
Cedar Run Rd.

The following individuals addressed the Board:

Tim Arends, Executive Director
Mark Watson, Field Engineer

3. Capital Plan Update.
The following individuals addressed the Board:

Tim Arends, Executive Director
Karla Myers-Beman, Controller

C. From Board

Item 7 on the Agenda being Public Comment

a. General
The following individuals from the Public addressed the Board:

Ann Rogers, 1236 Peninsula Dr., ratepayer
Dave Petrov, 9988 Riley Rd., non-ratepayer




TCL&P Regular Board Meeting Minutes -+ August 14, 2018

There being no objection, Chairman McGuire declared the meeting adjourned at 6:46 p.m.

Tim Arends, Secretary
LIGHT AND POWER BOARD




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 25, 2018

TRAVERSE CITY
LIGHT & POWER

To: Light & Power Board

From: Tim Arends, Executive Director
Date: September 3, 2018

Subject: Confirming Cintas Contract

A standard rental service contract was recently renewed with Cintas Corporation for weekly
rental and cleaning of rugs placed throughout the buildings at the Hastings Service Center at an
approximate cost of $109.63 per week for a sixty-month term. Based on the utility’s purchasing
policy any contract exceeding one year requires board approval. It is staff’s request that the
Board approve this confirming contract.

This item is on the Consent Calendar as it is deemed non-controversial. Approval of this item on
the Consent Calendar means you agree with staff’s recommendation.

If any member of the Board or the public wishes to discuss this matter, other than clarifying
questions, it should be placed on the “Items Removed from the Consent Calendar” portion of the
agenda for full discussion. If after Board discussion you agree with staff’s recommendation the
following motion would be appropriate:

MOVED BY », SECONDED BY X

THAT THE BOARD APPROVES THE STANDARD RENTAL SERVICE CONTRACT

WITH CINTAS CORPORATION FOR A TERM OF SIXTY MONTHS.



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 25, 2018

TRAVERSE CITY
LIGHT & POWER

To: Light & Power Board

From: Tony Chartrand, System Engineer

Date: September 11, 2018

Subject: Parsons Switching Station Project — Relay Panel Purchase Authorization

Request

GRP Engineering solicited bids for the purchase of Relay Panels for the Parsons Switching
Station project. Two (2) bids were requested and two (2) were received:

Vendor Price
EP2 $111,684.00
Keystone $104,637.02

After review by staff, it is recommended TCL&P issue a purchase order to Keystone in the
amount of $104,637.02 for the Relay Panels, following the attached recommendation from
GRP. These costs are in line with the anticipated material costs for this project.

This item is on the Consent Calendar as it is deemed non-controversial. Approval of this
item on the Consent Calendar means you agree with staff's recommendation.

If any member of the Board or the public wishes to discuss this matter other than clarifying
questions, it should be placed on the “Iltems Removed from the Consent Calendar” portion
of the agenda for full discussion. If after Board discussion you agree with staff's
recommendation, the following motion is recommended:

MOVED BY , SECONDED BY )

THAT THE BOARD AUTHORIZES THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO ISSUE A
PURCHASE ORDER TO KEYSTONE IN THE AMOUNT OF $104,637.02 FOR RELAY

PANELS TO BE USED FOR THE PARSONS SWITCHING STATION PROJECT.



GRP

Engineering, Inc. Power Utility & Electrical Engineering

September 7, 2018
18-0929.01

Mr. Daren Dixon

Operations Manager
Traverse City Light & Power
1131 Hastings Street
Traverse City, MI 49686

RE: Parsons Switch Station
Relay Control Panels Bid Evaluation & Recommendation

Dear Daren:

GRP Engineering, Inc. has completed our evaluation of the 69kV Relay Control Panels bids received for
the Parsons Switch Station project. Of the three (3) vendors invited to submit bids, two (2) bids were
received. Keystone submitted the low bid in the amount of $104,637.02. A complete bid tabulation is
attached to this letter. Keystone quoted a delivery time of 12 — 14 weeks which meets the current
project schedule.

Vendor Total
EP2 $111,684.00
Keystone $104,637.02 (Low Bid)

Keystone’s quoted price is below the $125,000 estimated for these panels. GRP Engineering, Inc. sees
no reason not to accept Keystone’s bid. Please contact me should you have any questions regarding this
evaluation.

Sincerely,
GRP Engineering, Inc.

TP Pkl

Michael McGeehan
Project Engineer

Enclosures

cc: Traverse City Light & Power
Mr. Tony Chartrand

6290 Jupiter Ave NE Suite D

Belmont, Ml 49306

P: 616.942.7183 www.grp-engineering.com
F: 231.439.9698

459 Bay Street
Petoskey, Ml 49770
P: 231.439.9683
F: 231.439.9698

10



810¢/./6 sjaued jo5juo) Aejay suosied 10°6260-81

'3'd UYL "d [9BYOIIN

\ Ag
*au| ‘Burisauibuy 4yo

‘peal pue pauado Aoiignd a1am uiaiay pajenge; spiq ay) ‘gLoz ‘g 1aquisjdeg AepsaupspA Uo swi} (0] W eQQ: | L e Yey) Alpaeo oy si siy L

pig moT SoA 20°2£9'v01$ ANOLSAIA
S9N 00v89°'LLLS 2d3
p!'g ON SI9YANT
SYUVINTY L# INNAN3IAav J01¥d dig sd3aaig
3svd ¥OAdN3IA V.10l

0..6¥ IIN ‘A3MsoLl3d 98961 1INl ‘ALID ISYIAVHL
133418 AVg 65V STANVYd TOYLNOD AV13Y - AUYVA AM69 13341S SONILSVH LELL
*ONI ‘ONIMIANIONT d4D NOILVLS HOLIMS SNOS¥Vd HIMOd ? LHOIT ALID ASYHIAVHL
B EEINBIVE] HANMO

NOLLVINGVL aig

11




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 25, 2018

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER
To: Light & Power Board
From: Karla Myers-Beman, Controller
Date: August 27,2018
Subject: Public hearing for the proposed November 1, 2018 rate increase

At the April 10, 2018 board meeting staff along with Utility Financial Solutions presented the
results of the cost of service study performed for the purpose to ensure the following:

1. There is sufficient revenue to provide capital to maintain a reliable system.
2. Simplify the rate structure for ease of billing.

3. To create a five-year rate schedule to correct subsidies between rate classes.
3. Modify the rates within each tariff to reflect the cost of service.

Sufficient Revenue

The cost of service study recommends a revenue neutral rate increases and decreases for differing
classes this year with no overall rate increase until the fiscal year 2020-21. Staff will evaluate
every year at budget time to determine if any modifications are necessary to the five-year rate plan.

The revenue neutral rate increase means overall the utility will not see an increase in utility
revenues, however, different rate classes will see varying levels of an increase/decrease to their
bill based on their energy consumption. These are presented on the individual rates sheets included
in the board packet.

Simplify the rate structure

Staff plans on simplifying the rate structure over the next several years. Some rates will take
longer to transition to prevent significant increases or “rate shock™ to customers. These rates tend
to have minimal number of customers within the rate class and/or encourage energy consumption
and reflect the times of when they were created. These rates include the Water and Space Heating,
Commercial Electric Air Conditioning, Commercial Water Heater, Primary Interruptible, and
Municipal Pumping 103%. When these rates will be transitioned are noted on the summary page
of the tariff rates.

In addition, the tariffs will no longer have winter/summer rates or often referred to as seasonal
rates, as our rates do not fluctuate significantly during the year based on the utility’s current
purchased power contracts.

12



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 25, 2018

Correct subsidies and modify the rates

Staff is proposing to correct the subsidizations between rate classes as shown in the Table of Cost
of Service Summary Results included within the board packet. This table shows the
Commercial/General Tariff Rate is subsidizing at various levels other tariff rates.

Cost of Service Structure
Additionally, within this revenue neutral rate increase is to make gradual increases/decreases in
the rates within each tariff to reflect the cost of service. Mostly migrating the fixed distribution
charges from the variable consumption components (billing based on per kWh sold) of the rates to
the fixed customer charges.

Each tariff rate shows an increase in the customer service charge varying from $1.50 for the
residential tariff to $50 for the industrial tariff rate. Once again, the movements towards cost of
service will be gradual as we want to provide an acceptable level of increases to the customers
over the next several years.

Other information .

Staff is proposing also modifying language within the residential tariff rates to clarify when
customers are in a work/live dwelling of whether they should be charged a residential or
commercial tariff rate. The modified language added to the residential tariff rates is as follows:

“Service under this rate is not available when a portion of the dwelling or an appurtenant building
is used for commercial, industrial, or resale purposes unless the wiring is so arranged that service
for residential and non-residential purposes are metered separately at separate service locations.”

Staff will also be working on over the next several months a “Rules and Regulation for Electric
Service”, which will encompass all policies, tariffs and rates charged for providing electric service.
Staff believes this will be a great resource tool for both customers and staff.

Conclusion

It is staff’s recommendation that the Board sets a public hearing for the proposed rate
increases/decreases at its September 25, 2018 meeting. If after Board discussion you agree with
staff’s recommendation the following motion would be appropriate.

MOVED BY , SECONDED BY ;

THAT THE BOARD AUTHORIZES THE SECRETARY TO SET A PUBLIC HEARING

FOR THE PROPOSED NOVEMBER 15T RATE INCREASES/DECREASES TO BE HELD
AT THE OCTOBER 9, 2018 REGULAR MEETING; AND FURTHER THAT A NOTICE

OF THE PUBLIC HEARING BE POSTED ON THE UTILITY’S WEBSITE AND

PLACED IN THE TRAVERSE CITY RECORD EAGLE.

13



vl

“pauonisuen
9q [[IM JOWOISNO | 938y T-dJA 9U3 0} PISO[O 2q [[IM S3ey (0L00°0) 05600 0201°0 00°€l 00'CE 0061 %0L"9" %€01 ¥ IdN
(L000°0) £860°0 06600 00°€ 007T 00'61 %00°0 [JN Auoymy d1qng
0£00°0 0560°0 07600 0001 00ZE 00'CT %0S'€ ZdIN Auoyiny o1iqnd
KAuoyny dqng
s o e e e T B T e e S G e S e
(5500°0) 000T°0 SS0T°0 Kep 1od YA 9T J0AO J[B - O], PUOISS
(1t00°0) 6680°0 0¥60°0 Kep 1od Y 97 - 1oL, I1SIL]
‘pauonIsuEx 3q [[IM s1BWosNO §1 Ajerewnrxoiddy yz-£207 - - - (05°0) 0S¥ 00°s v e ._MEM Mwwwuzm
129K [BOSI] UI 9)B1 JLIR} [RIJUSPISAI Y} OJUI PASO[D 3q [[Im 338y %MWNWV MMMWN NMMNW r #}WMW wua ﬁgﬁ” 91 - Wuw._. umbw
(0s°0) 0S¥ 00'S S1ey SN
%00°0 Sunesdy doedg Jo1udg
‘pauonIsueI} 3 [[IM SIWOISNO ¢6 Aopewxoiddy “€7-7z0T Jeak - §501 .o 501 .o 2P 30 _._.BMMQM MM>O e - ._u._,.ﬂ.oWﬁOMMm
[BOSIJ UI 9jel JJ1Ie) [RIJUSPISAI JOTUSS S} OJUI PISO[O 3q [[1M 3By 62000 9£80.0 L080:0 050 0S Y 00'S %007 2 MMMVNWNLQHH.“”EU.NQW
S — S e < . G
$¥00°0 00IT°0 SS0T°0 IOAO [B - IOI] I,
JUNODSI(Y JOIURS 0'ES YA 0S"L§ ITIEYO 301AIDS AMM%NV mewm NMMM Kep 1od ﬁwmow @Mmheﬂwﬂm
(05°0) 0S¥ 00'S %00°T [EDUIPISIY J0TUIS
T e Y e o e T e U S I Sy S T
- §S01°0 SS01°0 Kep 10d YAN9T I9A0 [[B - ISL], PUOISS
(6£00°0) 1060°0 0¥60°0 Kep 1od ymY 97 - 1OLL, ISIL]
0s'T 0S’L 009 Qey Jowung
‘pauonisuen aq [[im s1owosno ¢z Aspeunxoiddy “£7-720T . s
o —
0S'T 0s'L 009 BENESHITY
%00°'T Suneay doedg [enUIPISIY
e e A e e e e e e S S e S e o
‘pauonIsuel] oq [[IM s19W0Isno (g ¢ Ajerewnxoiddy ‘0z-610T 189K . §¢01 4o $S01 .o Aep 1od gmmm Q._M>o e - uﬂ%vwawmwm
RS ECSEP SRR I SRR I e £reet et 0S'T 0S°L 009 %05'T M::E;—.WMMMS _«..{H.nummum
o' - B .
R T e 7 e A e e e e
= SS0T°0 SS0T°0 Kep 1od YMN9T ISAO [[B - ISL], PUOISS
(6100°0) 1260°0 0¥60°0 Kep 10d YA\ 9T - JOIT ISTIT
0S'T 0S'L 009 [ERUIPISAY
%0S'T [e1IUaPISAY
NUARJIQ A A RUARNNIA|  YMA LIPN | NUWADPIA | ey Rey ENERRET(| SSE[) Jowoisny
pasodoag | jud.nan) pasodoag | jud.in) A[IUOIA | A[QIUOIAl 10
ﬁUmOQO.:H juwaan) IseA.UJ
SSB[D
ey
HEIDAO
8107 usisa( ey
IaMOJ Pue JYSIT A ISIIABL],




Gl

“JUNOJSIP %07 © 38 sajel poddns 71 sepraoxd JTDL 910N

9JRIPAWLIAU]

ead-uo

oyey Jowwng

91BIPAULIU]

ead-uo

arey UM

[4A!

0001

87’8

00°ST

00°SS

00°0%

%080

SuneN eI

9)RIPSULIAU]

Yead-uo

ey Jowwng

AJeIpauLIdUL

ed-U0

ey IOIUIM

“JB3K [BOSIJ STY} 9By [BLISNPU] Y} 03 PISOd 2 [[IM a1y

ST'L

STTI

00°TT

00°0S

00°001

00°0S

%0L'T

oiqudnusjuy Areurid

OJRIPAULIAU]

ead-uo

Qe Jowwing

91RIPOWLI)U]

Yead-uo

SENEETN

ST1

STl

00°TT

00°08

007001

00708

%000

(reinsnpuy) seyey] 10308, peo YSIH 201AI0S ATewLi]

"pouonIsuLI) oq [[IM SIAWO0ISNO ¢¢ Aopewrxoiddy “€7-7707 |

JeaKk [BOSIJ UI 3JBI JJLIE} [RIOIOWILIO)) 0} PISO]d aq [[IM ey

2000

780170

0901°0

00T

00°ST

00°€l

%087

[eLysnpuy

SuruonIpuo)) Iy pue JedH dL109[d [EI0ISW0))

“pauonIsuLI) 9q [[IM SIow0Isno 7 Aspewirxorddy “€7-720T
189K [BOSIJ UI 9JI JJ1IE) [BIOISUILO)) 0} PISO[0 2q [[IM ey

020070

06600

0L60°0

ST¢

00°ST

SL'TT

%099

901AI8G SUNBOH JOJeA\ [BLIISNPU] [BIOISWIIOD)

89°0

STEl

LST1

(6100°0)

79500

1850°0

00'¥

00°0¢

0091

%000

POLIDIOA ATRWLI] PUBW(] [BIOISWWO))

050

SYEl

S6'CI

(6100°0)

1LS0°0

06500

00°S

00°0T

00°ST

%000

90IAIOS AIBPUOJSS [BISUSL) /PUBIA(] [RIOISUIIOD)

H (9£000)

SLIT0

1121°0

00T

00°SL

00°€L

%08'T-

90TAI9S ATBPUOISS [EISUAD)/[BIOIAUIUIO))

[BI.IWUI0))

SIJON

WAIJIA

M
pasodoag

M
LN

UAIPJIQ

UM
pasodoag

UM
JERLIND

UL

ey
Aqyuoy
pasodoag

ey
Apuoy
JUR.LIN)

ssg[)
ey
[[EIAQ

sse[) JauIojsn))

8107 USISa( ey

I9MoJ pue s A1) ISIIARI],




%05°0
%S9°1
%00°0
%10°0-
%000
%LL9-
%81'¢
%¢20°0-
%799
%085°C
%081~
%88°C
%680
%00°0
%00°T
%L6°1
%00°T
%05°'C
%LY'1
Aguey) o,

7SS 179°0¢ %8L'Y ETITLE0E S88‘TE0°TE [v10],
€0STLLT %SL'L T9LTILT 662°668°1 SuneN [eRN
SPL9EY %96°€1 SE9°6TY £29°68Y o[qudnurseyuy Lrewig
8LETTSL %99°'C 8LETTSL IVTITL L J0108,] PeoT YIIH 90IAIeS Alewli]
TEL'SLI %0F' 1~ 018°8L1 86C°9L1 POISIOIA ATRWILIJ PUBWIS(] [BIOISUILIO))
TLL6T 0T %LY'9 TOLL6T0T 188°LS8°01 A1epu0oag [LIUAD)/PUBLIS(] [BIOISWIIO))
8€6°TS %E0LT LOL'SS €61°69 %€0T e 991108 Jurduing [edroruniyy
99€°081 %LL'6E €6TYLT 119°¢he (T-dIN) eo1at0g Surdung edouniy
SET6S %81'C 8165 €19°09 (1-dIA) eorateg Surdung redoruny
thJ gmm.wﬁ NO@J omwﬁﬁ oom>.~um wmﬁwom .55\,? Em.SmD_ucH vcm EMO.BEEOU
001°991 %yl 60291 LYEP91 SuuonIpuo) Ny PUE JedH OLIOIH [BIOISWWOD)
LY9'LLEE %IL 0T €01°8E0Y 109°509°¢ [BIOUSD)/[BIDIOUIIO))
012°8 %19°09 086°L L18C1 1oddng oJI'] JOIUSS [ENUSPISY
066°L1 %65°9C 1€8°LT €LSTT 110ddng o1'7 [enuspISaY
LSTLT %b1°01 LSTLY L0061 JeoH eoedg I01ues
STHI€9 %TT0¢ €L1°6T9 STIVIS U9z JO[USg
95€°08 %S6°CE S8E6Y 95969 J13JESH 19} JOIUDS
898901 %9S°L 018501 908°CIT JeoH ooedg [enuepIsey
1£¥°08¢ %98'8 16S°€LT 9€8°L6T J10YeoH JOJeA [BIUSPISSY
100°996‘ $ %LEOI LY8€68Y 791 10¥°S $ JeNUopISOY
SONUIAIY muomoa_ohm AWARIIIA % SONUIANT IAIIG JO IS0D) Sse[)) Jauojsn)

padafoad yudaan)

810¢ Joquoydos
Arewnung 907AI9S JO 150D

JoMO{ pue I A1) 9SI0ARI],

16




TCL&P
Electric Rate Design
Projected Residential Rates

Rates

Current Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5

Monthly Facilities Charge: -
All Customers S
Energy Charge:
Block 1 (0 - 16 kWh per day)
Block 2 (Excess)
Power Cost Adjustment:
All Energy S

W

'6.00 S 750 S 750 S 9.00 $ 9.00 $ 10.50

0.0940 $
0.1055 $

0.0921 $
0.1055 $

0.0921 ¢
0.1055 §

0.0928 S
0.1055 $

0.0928 $
0.1055 S

0.0935
0.1055

(0.0019) $ (0.0019) $ (0.0019) $ (0.0019) $ (0.0019) S (0.0019)

Revenue from Rate $
Change from Previous

4,893,847 $ 4,966,001 $ 5,249,946 $ 5,406,286 S 5,406,286 $ 5,680,741
1.5% 0.1% 3.0% 0.0% 3.0%

10.0%
9.0%
8.0%
7.0%
6.0%
5.0%
4.0%
3.0%
2.0%
1.0%

T ~——_

\\\

Change by Monthly kWh Usage (%)

0.0%

350 500 650

800 950 1100 1250 1400 1550 1700

emm==Year 1 ee=e=Year 3 e===VYear5

$10.00
$9.00
$8.00
$7.00
$6.00
$5.00
$4.00
$3.00
$2.00

Change by Monthly kWh Usage (3)

$1.00

350 500 650

800 950 1100 1250 1400 1550 1700

emmmsYear ] emmesVYegr2 easmeYear3 esmssYear4 e===VYear5

ety P Nt G

17



TCL&P
Electric Rate Design
Consolidated Residential Water Heater Rates

Residential Rate

Rates Current Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5
Monthly Facilities Charge:
All Customers .S 6.00 $ 7.50 &S 750 S 9.00 § 9.00 $ 10.50
Energy Charge:
Block 1 (0 - 29 kWh per day) - $ 0.0940 $ 0.0942 $ 0.0921 $ 0.0928 $ 0.0928 $ 0.0935
Block 2 (Excess) S 0.1055 $ 0.1055 S 0.1055 $ 0.1055 $ 0.1055 $ 0.1055
Power Cost Adjustment:
All Energy S (0.0019) $ (0.0019) $ (0.0019) S (0.0019) $ (0.0019) $ (0.0019)
Revenue from Rate $ 273,591 $ 280,431 S 283,946 S 291,295 S 294,451 S 302,565
Change from Previous 2.5% 1.3% 2.6% 1.1% 2.8%
Note: Blocks change in Year 2 from 0-29 kwh per day to 0-16 kWh per day
Change by Monthly kWh Usage (%)
10.0%
8.0%
6.0%
0% L\
2.0%
0.0%
350 450 50 650 750 850 950 1050 1150 1250
-2.0%
-4.0%
e (@Al ] e YEQr 2  wmmmsYEar 3  emmsmeYEar 4  ewsssYear 5
Change by Monthly kWh Usage (S)
$10.00
$8.00
$6.00
$4.00
$2.00 |
s =
3-M 650 750 850 950 1050 1150 1250
$(2.00)
e Y@3r 1 emmmmmYear 2 esmmemYear 3 emsmmsYear4 esse=sYear 5

(e )

Electric Rate Design /Ufg 1 8




TCL&P
Electric Rate Design
Consolidated Residential Space Heat Rates

Residential Rate

Rates Current Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5
Monthly Facilities Charge:
All Customers S 6.00 $ 750 S 750 $ 9.00 $ 9.00 $ 10.50
Energy Charge:
Winter Block 1 (0 - 480 kWh) $ 0.0920 $ 0.0913 $ 0.0913 $ 0.0923 S 0.0923 $ 0.0935
Winter Block 2 (Excess) S 0.1055 $ 0.1055 S 0.1055 $ 0.1055 S 0.1055 $ 0.1055
Summer Block 1 (0 - 480 kWh) $ 0.0940 $ 0.0913 $ 0.0913 § 0.0923 S 0.0923 S 0.0935
Summer Block 2 (Excess) S 0.1055 S 0.1055 $ 0.1055 S 0.1055 S 0.1055 $ 0.1055
Power Cost Adjustment:
All Energy S (0.0019) $ (0.0019) s (0.0019) $ (0.0019) S (0.0019) $ (0.0019)
Revenue from Rate $ 105,810 $ 106,868 S 106,868 S 110,074 S 110,074 S 113,472
Change from Previous 1.0% 0.0% 3.0% 0.0% 3.1%
Change by Monthly kWh Usage (%)
10.0%
9.0%
8.0%
7.0%
6.0%
5.0%
4.0%
e \\
2.0% ‘
1.0% [ ——
0.0%
500 750 1000 1250 1500 1750 2000 2250 2500 2750
e=mmmYear ] se==sYear3 e==Year5
Change by Monthly kWh Usage (S)
$10.00
$9.00
$8.00
$7.00
$6.00
$5.00
$4.00
$3.00
$2.00
$1.00
$-
500 750 1000 1250 1500 1750 2000 2250 2500 2750
emmmmeYar ] essssmVYear2 esms=sYegr3 essesmYear4 —es=e=Year5

Lty Shenat tnacen LLC

18



TCL&P

Electric Rate Design
Projected Senior Citizen Rates

Rates Current Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5
Monthly Facilities Charge:
All Customers S 5.00 §$ 750 S 750 S 850 § 850 § 9.00
Senior Discount S 3.00 S 3.00 S 3.00 $ 3.00 S 3.00
Energy Charge:
Block 1 (0 - 480 kwh) S 0.07700 S 0.0820 S 0.0820 S 0.0841 S 0.0841 S 0.0864
Block 2 (481-522 kwh) § 0.12290 S 0.1110 §$ 0.1110 S 0.1055 $ 0.1055 S 0.1055
Block 3 (Excess) S 0.10550 S 0.1110 $ 0.1110 S 0.1055 S 0.1055 § 0.1055
Power Cost Adjustment:
All Energy -8 (0.0019) S (0.0019) S (0.0019) S (0.0019) S (0.0019) S (0.0019)
Revenue from Rate $ 625,173 S 631,425 S 631,425 S 650,368 S 650,368 S 669,879
Change from Previous 1.0% 0.0% 3.0% 0.0% 3.0%
Change by Monthly kWh Usage (%)
10.0%
\
8.0% \ﬂ\‘w
\L\\\“’*b..~~~
6.0% e
4.0% — ‘
*
\
2.0% \T\\\\\M
-'\\\\*Q':ut_\\_~
0.0% e —
100 200 300 400 500 600 700 800 900 E=gg0Q
-2.0%
Year1l smeess Year 3 Year 5
Change by Monthly kwh Usage (S)
$10.00
$8.00
$6.00
$4.00
$- / ----- Q':‘*::’c“%*::;,:—_
100 200 300 400 500 600 700 800 Efqubhx}@oo
$(2.00)
Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5

(e er e V)

20



TCL&P

Electric Rate Design
Consolidated Senior Space Heat Rates

Rates Current Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5
Monthly Facilities Charge:
All Customers S 5.00 $ 750 S 750 S 850 S 850 S 9.00
Senior Discount S 3.00 S 3.00 S 3.00 $ 3.00 S 3.00
Energy Charge:
Winter Block 1 (0 - 488 kwh) $ 0.09200 S 0.0899 S 0.0899 S 0.0886 S 0.0886 S 0.0878
Winter Block 2 (Excess) S 0.09200 S 0.1000 S 0.1000 S 0.1025 S 0.1025 S 0.1055
Summer Block 1 (0 -488 kWh! $ 0.09400 S 0.0899 S 0.0899 $ 0.0886 S 0.0886 S 0.0878
Summer Block 2 (Excess) S 0.10550 S 0.1000 S 0.1000 S 0.1025 S 0.1025 S 0.1055
Power Cost Adjustment:
All Energy S (0.0019) $ (0.0019) S (0.0019) $ (0.0019) s (0.0019) S (0.0019)
Revenue from Rate $ 17,257 S 17,257 S 17,257 S 17,257 § 17,257 S 17,257
Change from Previous 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

10.0%

8.0%

6.0%

4.0%

2.0%

0.0%

5
-2.0%
-4.0%
-6.0%

-8.0%

Change by Monthly kWh Usage (%)

1500

Year 3

1750

Year 4

2000

Year 5

Year 1

-10.0%

Year 2

2250

2500

2750

$(1.00)

$(2.00)

$(3.00)

Year 2

Year 3

Change by Monthly kWh Usage (S)

Year 4

Year 5

Year 1

Electric Rate Design

Loy FiasmisSvenen, L26

21



TCL&P

Electric Rate Design
Consolidated Senior Water Heater Rates

Senior Rate

Rates Current Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5
Monthly Facilities Charge:

All Customers S 5.00 $ 7.50 S 7.50 S 850 S 850 S 9.00

Senior Discount S 3.00 S 3.00 $ 3.00 $ 3.00 § 3.00
Energy Charge:

Block 1 (0 - 29 kWh perda $ 0.08070 S 0.08361 S 0.0836 S 0.0844 $ 0.0844 S 0.0864

Block 2 (Excess) S 0.10550 S 0.1055 $ 0.1055 $ 0.1055 S 0.1055 S 0.1055

Power Cost Adjustment S (0.0019) $ (0.0019) $ (0.0019) $ (0.0019) $ (0.0019) S (0.0019)

Revenue from Rate $ 49,385 S 50,356 S 50,356 S 51,901 S 51,901 S 53,941
Change from Previous 2.0% 0.0% 3.1% 0.0% 3.9%

Change by Monthly kWh Usage (%)

10.0%
9.0%
8.0%
7.0%
6.0%
5.0%
4.0%

3.0%
e
2.0%
1.0%
0.0%
250 300 350 400 450 500 550 600 650 700
Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5
Change by Monthly kWh Usage (S)
$7.00
$6.00
$5.00
$4.00
$3.00
$2.00
e ——
$1.00 ————
$-
250 300 350 400 450 500 550 600 650 700
Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5

Electric Rate Design /ﬁ

Uity Finarol Solutiona, LLC

22



TCL&P

Electric Rate Design
Projected Residential Life Support Rates

Reduction Factor | 0.8] 0.8 0.8 0.8] 0.8 0.8}
Rates Current Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year5
Monthly Facilities Charge:
All Customers S 4.80 S 6.00 S 6.00 S 720 $ 7.20 S 8.40
Energy Charge:
Block 1 (0-16 kWh perda $  0.07520 S 0.0737 $ 0.0737 - $ 0.0742 S 0.0742 S 0.0748
Block 2 (Excess) S 0.08440 S 0.0844 S 0.0844 S 0.0844 S 0.0844 S 0.0844
Power Cost Adjustment:
All Energy S (0.0019) S (0.0019) S (0.0019) $ (0.0019) $ (0.0019) S (0.0019)
Revenue from Rate $ 17,831 § 17,990 S 17,990 $ 18,379 S 18,379 $ 18,778
Change from Previous 0.9% 0.0% 2.2% 0.0% 2.2%
Change by Monthly kWh Usage (%)
10.0%
9.0%
8.0%
7.0%
6.0%
5.0%
4.0%
3.0%
20% [ ———
1.0%
0.0%
500 700 900 1100 1300 1500 1700 1900 2100 2300
emmmmmVYear 1 ex=umeYear3 e===Year5
Change by Monthly kWh Usage (S)
$1.40
$1.20 E= —
$1.00
$0.80
$0.60
$0.40
$0.20
&
500 700 900 1100 1300 1500 1700 1900 2100 2300

e Year ] ewsessYegr2 emmmYear3 emssssYear4 es===Year5

Vst L xma KL

23



TCL&P

Electric Rate Design
Projected Residential Senior Life Support Rates

Rates Current Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5
Monthly Facilities Charge:
All Customers S 400 S 6.00 $ 6.00 S 6.80 S 6.80 S 7.20
Senior Discount S 3.00 $ 3.00 S 3.00 S 3.00 $ 3.00
Energy Charge:
Block 1 (0 - 480 kWh per day) $ 0.06160 $ 0.0656 S 0.0656 S 0.0673 S 0.0673 S 0.0691
Block 2 (16 - 33kWh per day) $ 0.09832 S 0.0888 $ 0.0888 S 0.0844 S 0.0844 S 0.0844
Block 3 (Excess) S 0.08440 S 0.0888 S 0.0888 S 0.0844 S 0.0844 S 0.0844
Power Cost Adjustment:
All Energy S (0.0019) S (0.0019) S (0.0019) S (0.0019) S (0.0019) $ (0.0019)
Revenue from Rate $ 7,980 S 8,210 S 8,210 $ 8,379 S 8,379 S 8,600
Change from Previous 2.9% 0.0% 2.1% 0.0% 2.6%
Change by Monthly kWh Usage (%)
10.0%
8.0%
6.0%
\
4.0%
2.0%
0.0%
100 300 400 500 600 700 800 900 1000
-2.0%
-4.0%
-6.0%
-8.0%
Year 1 Year3 Year 5
Change by Monthly kWh Usage ()
$3.50
$3.00
$2.50
$2.00
$1.50
$1.00
$0.50
$-
101 400 500 600 700
$(0.50)
Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5
$(1.00)

Uity Financl Solatomt LLC

24



TCL&P

Electric Rate Design
Projected Commercial/General Rates

Rates Current Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5
Monthly Facilities Charge:
All Customers S 13.00 S 15.00 S 15.00 $ 17.00 S 17.00 S 19.00
Energy Charge:
All Energy S 0.1211 §$ 0.1175 $ 0.1175 S 0.1174 § 0.1174 S 0.1174
Power Cost Adjustment:
All Energy S (0.0019) $ (0.0019) S (0.0019) $ (0.0019) $ (0.0019) $ (0.0019)
Revenue from Rate $ 4,038,103 $ 3,977,647 $ 3,977,647 $ 4,028,859 $ 4,028,859 $ 4,264,380
Change from Previous -1.5% 0.0% 1.3% 0.0% 1.3%

Change by Monthly kWh Usage (%)
10.0%

8.0%
6.0%

4.0%

20% e

0.0% =

500 m“"“ 1100 1300 1500 1700 1900 2100 2300

-2.0%

-4.0%

emmmmYear ] esss==Year3 —wwssseYear 5

Change by Monthly kWh Usage ($)
$3.00
$2.00
$1.00

s_
$(1.00)°
$(2.00)
$(3.00)
$(4.00)
$(5.00)
$(6.00)
$(7.00)

900 1100 1300 1500 1700 1900 2100 2300

emmmmYoar ] e=mm=Yegr2 wmeweYear3 emmmmYear4 —wssssYear5

Uriey Finamial lotaoma LLC

25




TCL&P
Electric Rate Design

Consolidated Commercial Electric Heat and Air Conditioning Rates

Commercial Rate

Rates Current Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5
Monthly Facilities Charge:
All Customers S 13.00 $ 15.00 S 15.00 $ 17.00 $ 17.00 $ 19.00
Energy Charge:
All Energy S 0.1060 S 0.1082 $ 0.1104 $ 0.1126 S 0.1150 S 0.1174
Power Cost Adjustment:
All Energy S (0.0019) $ (0.0019) $ (0.0019) S (0.0019) S (0.0019) S (0.0019)
Revenue from Rate $ 162,049 S 166,100 $ 169,422 S 173,658 S 177,131 S 181,630
Change from Previous 2.5% 2.0% 2.5% 2.0% 2.5%
Change by Monthly kWh Usage (%)
10.0%
9.0%
8.0%
7.0%
6.0%
5.0%
4.0%
3.0% e
2.0%
1.0%
0.0%
1000 1500 2000 2500 3000 3500 4000 4500 5000 5500
Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5

Change by Monthly kWh Usage (S)

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

4000

Year 1

Year 2

Year3

Year 4

Year 5

4500

5000

5500

Electric Rate Design

Ly ool Substons, LLC

26



TCL&P

Electric Rate Design
Consolidated Commercial and Industrial Water Heating Service Rates

Commercial Rate

Rates Current Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5
Monthly Facilities Charge:
All Customers S 11.75 $ 15.00 S 15.00 S 17.00 $ 17.00 $ 19.00
Energy Charge:
All Energy S 0.0970 $ 0.0990 $ 0.1040 S 0.1090 S 0.1140 S 0.1174
Power Cost Adjustment:
All Energy S (0.0019) S (0.0019) $ (0.0019) S (0.0019) S (0.0019) S (0.0019)
Revenue from Rate $ 1,602 S 1,708 S 1,777 S 1,894 S 1,964 S 2,059
Change from Previous 6.6% 4.1% 6.6% 3.7% 4.9%

Change by Monthly kWh Usage (%)

10.0%
9.0%
8.0%
7.0%
6.0%
5.0%

4.0%
3.0%
2.0%
1.0%
0.0%

500 750 1000 1250 1500 1750 2000 2250 2500 2750

Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5

Change by Monthly kWh Usage (S)

500 750 1000 1250 1500 1750 2000 2250 2500 2750

Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5

Electric Rate Design /ﬁ

ety vl S, LLC

27



TCL&P

Electric Rate Design
Projected Municipal Pumping Service (MP-1) Rates

Rates Current Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5
Monthly Facilities Charge:
All Customers S 19.00 S 22.00 S 22.00 $ 25.00 $ 25.00 $ 28.00
Energy Charge:
All Energy S 0.0990 S 0.0983 S 0.0983 $ 0.0991 S 0.0991 S 0.1000
Power Cost Adjustment:
All Energy $ (0.0019) $  (0.0019) $  (0.0019) $  (0.0019) $  (0.0019) $  (0.0019)
Revenue from Rate $ 59,148 $ 59,135 $ 59,135 $ 60,023 $ 60,023 S 60,923
Change from Previous 0.0% 0.0% 1.5% 0.0% 1.5%
Change by Monthly kWh Usage (%)
10.0%
8.0%
6.0%
4.0%
2.0%
0.0% — ——————
1500 2000 2500 3000 3500 4000 4500 5000 5500 6000
-2.0%
emmmmYear ] e====Year3 essssYear5
Change by Monthly kWh Usage (S)
$10.00
$8.00 S—
$6.00
$4.00
$2.00
$- T
1500 2000 2500 3000 3500 4000 4500 5000 560 6000
$(2.00)
emmm=Year ]l emmmYear2 w=s==Year3 emmsmwYeard —esssYear5

bty Firomtal o, LLC

28




TCL&P
Electric Rate Design
Projected Municipal Pumping Service (MP-2) Rates

Rates Current Year1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5
Monthly Facilities Charge:
All Customers S 22.00 S 32.00 $ 32.00 $ 42.00 $ 42.00 $ 52.00
Energy Charge:
All Energy S 0.0920 $ 0.0950 $ 0.0950 $ 0.0977 S 0.0977 S 0.1004
Power Cost Adjustment:
All Energy S (0.0019) S (0.0019) $ (0.0019) $ (0.0019) $ (0.0019) S (0.0019)
Revenue from Rate $ 174,293 S 232,304 S 232,304 S 239,273 S 239,273 S 246,451
Change from Previous 1.0% 0.0% 3.0% 0.0% 3.0%
Change by Monthly kWh Usage (%)
10.0%
9.0%
8.0%
7.0%
6.0%
5.0%
4.0%
3.0%
2.0%
1.0%
O-ODO
45000 50000 55000 60000 65000 70000 75000 80000 85000 90000
emmmmYegr ]l esswssYear3 essseYear 5
Change by Monthly kWh Usage (S)
$300.00
$250.00
$200.00
$150.00
$100.00
$50.00
S‘
45000 50000 55000 60000 65000 70000 75000 80000 85000 90000
emmmmsYogr] emmmYegr2 ssssesYegr3 essssYear4 —esssswYear5




TCL&P

Electric Rate Design
Consolidated Municipal Pumping Service at 103% Rates

MP-2 Rate
Rates Current Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5
Monthly Facilities Charge:
All Customers S 19.00 S 32.00 S 32.00 $ 42.00 S 42.00 S 52.00
Energy Charge:
All Energy S 0.10200 S 0.0950 $ 0.0950 $ 0.0977 S 0.0977 S 0.1004
Power Cost Adjustment:
All Energy S (0.0019) S (0.0019) $ (0.0019) $ (0.0019) S (0.0019) S (0.0019)
Revenue for Graph $ 55,707 §$ 51,983 §$ 51,983 §$ 53,578 S 53,578 S 55,220
Change from Previous -6.7% 0.0% 3.1% 0.0% 3.1%
Change by Monthly kWh Usage (%)
10.0%
8.0%
6.0%
4.0%
2.0%
0.0%
- OO/SSGJOO 37000 39000 41000 43000 45000 47000 49000 51000 53000
-4.0%
-6.0%
-8.0%
-10.0%
Year 1 Year 2 Year3 Year 4 Year 5
Change by Monthly kWh Usage (S)
$200.00
$100.00
$
35000 37000 39000 41000 43000 45000 47000 49000 51000 53000
$(100.00)
$(200.00)
$(300.00)
$(400.00)
Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year5

Electric Rate Design /UFS.>

Untty ol Sobutors, LLC.

30



TCL&P

Electric Rate Design
Projected Commercial Demand/General Secondary Rates

Rates Current Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5
Monthly Facilities Charge:
Monthly Charge S 15.00 $ 20.00 $ 20.00 $ 25.00 $ 25.00 30.00
Energy Charge:
All Energy $ 0.0590 $ 0.0571 $ 0.0571 $ 0.0571 S 0.0571 0.0571
Demand Charge
All Demand S 1295 $ 13.45 $ 13.45 $ 13.95 $ 13.95 14.45
Power Cost Adjustment:
All Energy $ (0.0019) $ (0.0019) $ (0.0019) $ (0.0019) $ (0.0019) (0.0019)
Revenue from Rate $ 10,197,762 $ 10,197,762 $ 10,197,762 $ 10,401,717 $ 10,401,717 10,609,751
Change from Previous 0.0% 0.0% 2.0% 0.0% 2.0%
Change by Load Factor based on Class Average Demand (%)
10.0%
8.0%
6.0%
4.0%
2.0%
0.0%
29% 30% 35% 40% 45% 50% 55% 60% T5Y% —70%
-2.0%

emmmmYear 1 esssssYear3 esssYear5

Lt Tommert e L1

31



TCL&P
Electric Rate Design
Projected Commercial Demand Primary Metered Rates

Rates Current Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5
Monthly Facilities Charge:
Monthly Charge S 16.00 S 20.00 S 20.00 S 25.00 $ 25.00 $ 30.00
Energy Charge:
All Energy S 0.0581 $ 0.0562 $ 0.0562 S 0.0554 $ 0.0554 S 0.0552
Demand Charge
All Demand S 12.57 §$ 13.25 S 13.25 § 13.95 $ 13.95 S 14.45
Power Cost Adjustment:
All Energy $ (0.0019) $  (0.0019) $  (0.0019) $  (0.0019) $  (0.0019) $  (0.0019)
Revenue from Rate $ 178,810 $ 178,732 §$ 178,732 $ 180,992 S 180,992 S 183,346
Change from Previous ' 0.0% 0.0% 1.3% 0.0% 1.3%

Change by Load Factor based on Class Average Demand (%)
10.0%

8.0%
6.0%

4.0%

2.0%  (—

0.0%

30% 35% 40% 45% 50% 55% 60% 65% 70% 75%

-2.0%

emmmeYear ] esemsYear3 essmsYear5

Aty Pl St L1

32



TCL&P
Electric Rate Design

Projected Primary Service High Load Factor Rates

Rates Current Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5
Monthly Facilities Charge:
All Customers S 50.00 $ 100.00 $ 100.00 S 150.00 $ 150.00 $ 200.00
Energy Charge:
Winter On Peak S 0.0660 $ 0.0640 $ 0.0640 $ 0.0626 $ 0.0626 S 0.0604
Winter Off Peak S 0.0550 $ 0.0520 $ 0.0520 $ 0.0506 $ 0.0506 $ 0.0484
Summer On Peak S 0.0680 S 0.0640 $ 0.0640 $ 0.0626 S 0.0626 S 0.0604
Summer Off Peak S 0.0550 $ 0.0520 $ 0.0520 $ 0.0506 $ 0.0506 S 0.0484
Demand Charge:
All Demand S 11.00 S 12,25 S 1225 § 1350 S 13.50 S 15.00
Power Cost Adjustment:
All Energy S (0.0019) $ (0.0019) $ (0.0019) $ (0.0019) $ (0.0019) $ (0.0019)
Revenue from Rate $ 7,521,378 $ 7,521,378 $ 7,993,130 $ 8,142,734 $ 8,142,734 $ 8,268,622
Change from Previous 0.0% 0.4% 1.9% 0.0% 1.5%

10.0%
8.0%
6.0%

4.0%

e s
2.0% \

Change by Load Factor based on Class Average Demand (%)

0.0%
50% 55%

60%

65%

70%

75% @ O

]5%

90%

95%

-2.0%

e Year 1

== Year 3  esssmesYear 5

ity bieniel ol LLC

33



TCL&P
Electric Rate Design

Consolidated Primary Interruptible Rates

PHLF Rate

Rates Current Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5
Monthly Facilities Charge:

All Customers S 50.00 $ 100.00 $ 100.00 $ 150.00 $ 150.00 $ 200.00
Energy Charge:

Winter On Peak S 0.0660 $ 0.0660 $ 0.0640 S 0.0626 S 0.0626 S 0.0604

Winter Off Peak S 0.0600 $ 0.0600 $ 0.0520 S 0.0506 $ 0.0506 S 0.0484

Summer On Peak S 0.0680 $ 0.0680 $ 0.0640 $ 0.0626 $ 0.0626 $ 0.0604

Summer Off Peak S 0.0600 $ 0.0600 $ 0.0520 $ 0.0506 S 0.0506 $ 0.0484
Demand Charge:

All Demand (= 11.00 S 12.25 S 12.25 S 13.50 S 13.50 $ 15.00
Power Cost Adjustment:

All Energy ) S (0.0019) $ (0.0019) $ (0.0019) $ (0.0019) $ (0.0019) $ (0.0019)

Revenue from Rate $ 429,635 S 436,745 S 483,791 $ 489,926 S 489,926 $ 494,113
Change from Previous 1.7% 10.8% 1.3% 0.0% 0.9%

Note: Year 2 increase is caused from measuring demand at actual rather than demand measurement per tariff rate. Otherwise it would be rate

decrease when consolidating to primary high load factor tariff rate.

Electric Rate Design

Uty Foumid iocrms LU

34



TCL&P
Electric Rate Design

Metal Melting
Rates Current Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5
Monthly Facilities Charge:
All Customers S 40.00 S 55.00 S 55.00 $ 70.00 $ 70.00 S 85.00
Energy Charge:
Winter On Peak S 0.06400 S 0.06360 S 0.06360 S 0.06320 S 0.06320 $ 0.06280
Winter Off Peak S 0.05000 $ 0.04760 S 0.04760 S 0.04720 S 0.04720 S 0.04680
Summer On Peak S 0.06700 S 0.06360 S 0.06360 S 0.06320 S 0.06320 $ 0.06280
Summer Off Peak S 0.05000 $ 0.04760 S 0.04760 S 0.04720 $ 0.04720 $ 0.04680
Demand Charge:
All Demand S 8.48 § 10.00 $ 10.00 $ 11.00 S 11.00 $ 12.00
Power Cost Adjustment:
All Energy $ (0.0019) $  (0.0019) $  (0.0019) $  (0.0019) $  (0.0019) $  (0.0019)
Revenue from Rate $ 1,762,762 $ 1,771,503 $ 1,771,503 $ 1,806,813 $ 1,806,813 S 1,842,123
Change from Previous 0.5% 0.0% 2.0% 0.0% 2.0%
Change by Load Factor based on Class Average Demand (%)
10.0%
8.0%
6.0%
4.0%
2.0%
0.0%
60% 65% 70% 75% 80% 85% 90% 95% T00% ==05%
-2.0%
s Yar ] emsmmYear 3 esmsmsYear 5

iy Pt S, 116

35



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 25, 2018

?‘ST. 19]2

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER

100 YEARS

To: Light & Power Board

From: Tim Arends, Executive Director

Date: September 10, 2018

Subject: MPPA Purchase Power Commitment - Solar

Michigan Public Power Agency (“MPPA”) has received authorization from its Board to execute
two purchase power agreements with developers; both are contingent on receiving authorization
letters from members to purchase the power from MPPA. One of the purchase power
agreements (“PPA”) has been executed and the other has a couple loose ends to work out before
signature. To support the PPA’s MPPA will be counting on Traverse City Light & Power to
commit to purchasing 22 MW’s of installed capacity that we expect to amount to about 38,544
MWh’s annually. The rate charged to each member participating will be a weighted average of
the two MPPA purchase power agreements based on actual generation from the two facilities and
will be about $41.60 per MWh, but can range plus or minus about $2 per MWh depending on
which facility is operating at any given time. This rate will increase 2% per year throughout the
term of the 25-year agreement. Your commitment to MPPA will be treated as a Purchase Power
Commitment (PPC) under the existing Energy Services Agreement that TCL&P has already
agreed to.

The reasons that MPPA highly recommends participation in the PPC are as follows:

1. Pricing for the PPA include:

*  Super-peak energy — Energy will be delivered when generated that correspond greatly to
the periods of the day when electric demand is the greatest, and therefore, when the value of
energy is the greatest.

*  Capacity — As coal plants in the State are retired, there is a general expectation in the
marketplace that capacity will increase in value because the coal plants will not be completely
replaced with new sources of generation.

*  Renewable Energy Credits —All MPPA members are required to meet the State of
Michigan Renewable Portfolio Standard and this solar supply will be one of the sources that will
provide the credits necessary to be submitted to the State. Current law requires that renewable
energy credits be submitted to the State that are equivalent to 15% of energy supplied.

2. MPPA has analyzed the economics of the three products purchased above against future
forecasts of power costs and believe that the solar facilities will bring a positive financial value
well into the future. This is a testament to the municipal joint action agency model and the
ability to aggregate the needs of multiple municipal members to bring the economics of power
supply projects to the cost levels typically experienced by the largest utilities.

36



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 25, 2018

e}

3. The electric industry is largely migrating its future energy supply to sources fueled by
natural gas. MPPA believes strongly that renewable energy provides a natural hedge against the
future costs of natural gas. Regardless of what happens to future costs of natural gas, this solar
pricing is fixed. MPPA also believes in diversity of supply and expects to enter into additional
agreements for more renewable energy in the near future.

4. This purchase power agreement goes towards achieving the Board’s renewable energy goal of
40% of its energy portfolio requirements from clean and renewable energy by 2025. With this
agreement the utility’s portfolio will be at an estimated 24% of its energy coming from clean and
renewable energy.

Staff has included an analysis within the board packet showing the most recent calculated
avoided cost of solar, costs of the purchase power commitment versus market, and the impact on
average residential, commercial, commercial demand and industrial rates. Additionally, the
Energy Services Project Transaction Authorization is included for your review.

If the Board agrees with moving forward with the Energy Services Project Transaction
Authorization the following motion would be appropriate:

MOVED BY , SECONDED BY 3

THE BOARD AUTHORIZES THE DESIGNATED MEMBER REPRESENTATIVE OF
THE MPPA & TCL&P ENERGY SERVICES AGREEMENT, THE EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR, TO SIGN MPPA’S ENERGY SERVICES PROJECT TRANSACTION
AUTHORIZATION FOR THE SOLAR ENERGY PURCHASE POWER
COMMITMENT ONCE TERMS ARE FINALIZED AND WITHIN THE DISCLOSED

TERMS PRESENTED TO THE BOARD.

37



(26'9T¥'T) $ (9T Tvv'T) $ (L6'05t'T) $ (€€90t'T) $ (89°THY'T) $ (95°6LY'T) $ (98°€05°T) $ Jawolsn) |epysnpu) a8elany
(v1°8L) $ (vS'6L) $ (2008) $ (95'L4) $ (15°62) $ (09'18) $ (v6'28) $ Jawoisn) puewaq [eIIBWWOD dFeIaNY
(sz'6) S (tv'6) S (Lv'6) $ (8T'6) $ (tv'6) $ (59'6) $ (18'6) $ J3WO03SN) [eI2JaWWO0Y) ageiany
(08°€) $ (98°€) $ (68°€) $ (LLg) $ (98°€) $ (96°€) $ (€0'p) $ 19WO03SND [BRUSPISIY SFeIdNY
ST119 ¥3WOLSND NO LOVdIAI TVNNNY

(€82£5000'0)  $ (9T65000°0) ¢ (T86S000°0) ¢ (9285000°0) ¢ (€009000'0) $ (T6T9000°0) ¢ (v2€9000'0) a1ey A1anooay 150D 92INISS Jomod uo pedu|
¥6'SLS'S0T 9T'€52'602 W'9TS0TT 69°0v0'702 0T'691'602Z 92'599'vTZ 78'061T'8TC CRlEER T
20'vTTTSLT 8T'66v'9¢L'T 10°ZST'TOLT 86'9/19L9'T 09'895TS9'T TS'TCELTI'T 0v'0EY'€09'T 19BI3U0D JaMO{ dseydind
S6'66L°LS6'T €€°TSL'SE6'T €V'899'TT6'T 99'/T7'088'T 0L'LEL'098'T 8/'986'T¥8'T TTTT9'TT8'T 150D 11N
ov'LE 065°LE 6LLLE 696°L€ 09T'8€ 15€'8¢€ PS8 (Ymw) uonessusp pazdadxy
SLS0D 4IMOd 3SYHIUNd NO 1OVdINI TYNNNY.

£250°0 $ SIS0'0 $ 90S0°0 $ S6v0°0 $ 88%0°0 $ 08v0°0 $ E€LV0'0 $ (ym 13d 150D) [e301
60000 $ 60000 $ 60000 $ 60000 $ 60000 $ 60000 $ 60000 $ Hpat) ABIau3 ajqemausy
T¥T0°0 $ 0v10°0 $ 0v100 $ 6£T0°0 $ 8ET0°0 $ 8ET0°0 $ LET00 $ 350D Aydede)
€L€0°0 $ 99£0°0 $ £SE€0°0 $ L¥E00 $ 0vE0'0 $ PEE00 $ LT£0°0 $ 350D AS1au3
£202 9202 5202 202 £20¢ 2202 1202 leaj enuo)

L 9 S v € Z 1 4v10S 40 1502 a3AIONY

810T Jaquiaidas

JUBWIHWWOD 3seYdind YddIA 10} JB|OS - 3211d JBMOd 95eYdind/1S0D) PapIony

1amod pue 1y AyD asianed|

38



(50°£68) $ (1T'TL6) $ (6L7208) S (SLvp0'T) $ (15°912'T) S (e€8hy'T) S (69 TTH'T) $ Jawolsn) [euisnpu) a8elany
(Lt6) $ (ss°€s) S (L) $ (2929 $ (60°29) $ (Lg'6L) $ (16'24) $ JawWoisn) puewaq [e10I3WUI0) dFRIBAY
(s8') $ (v€9) $ (ve's) $ (¢89) $ (v6'2) $ (sv'6) $ (zee) $ Jawoisn) [eRIBWIWOD d3elany
(ov'2) s (0972) $ (sT2) $ (082) $ (9z€) $ (88°€) ¢ (6L°€) S Jawolsn) [eluapisay aselany
ST118 ¥3NOLSND NO LOVdINI TYANNY

(9€5€000°0) $ (Lv8£000°0) $ (96T£000°0) s (0811000°0) s (168v000°0) ¢ (£585000°0) s (sgLso000) S ajey A19n023Y 150D 92IAIBS JaMOd Uo oedu]
Ly'0ST'0ET 90568001 L9'ELY'ITT 9T'6LS'TST TT66b'9LT TS EET0TT ST'€96'70T CELERETH
YT'9SEEV6'T YT'ST8VI6'T TC'ETL'988'T T6'€T0'658'T 9C'TTL'TES'T 0€'628v08'T ST'TEEBLL'T 10B43U0D JBMOd dseydund
19'905'€L0'C 0€'02£'SS0'T 68'98T€00'C LO'€650T0'C L¥'02T'800°C 78'796'V10'C 0¥'S67'€86'T 150D 19)4eIN
TIT'9€E ¥67'9€ 9/t'9€ 0999 v¥8'9€ 620'LE STT'LE (ymw) uonessusn pazdadxy
S1S0J ¥IMOd ISYHIUNd NO LOVdIAI TYNNNY

v£50°0 $ 99500 $ 6bS0°0 $ 8vS0'0 $ SvS0'0 $ ps0’0 $ €€50°0 S (ym 13d 350D [e30L
60000 $ 60000 $ 60000 $ 60000 $ 60000 $ 60000 $ 60000 $ Mpau) ABIau3 ajgemauay
9%T0'0 $ S¥10°0 $ SPT00 S ¥¥10°0 $ E¥T0°0 $ EVT0°0 $ TYI0'0 $ 350D Anoede)
61400 $ ZIv0'0 $ S6E0°0 $ S6£0°0 $ €6£0°0 $ €6£0°0 $ 7800 S 150D A8sau3
YE0T £€0¢ 2€02 TE0T 0£02 6202 8202 1ed) 1PRIU0D

T €1 A T W} 6 8 ¥V10S 40 150D Q3dIONY

8T0¢ 19qwaidas

ddIA 40} JB|OS - 9211d J9MOd 9SBYIINd/1S0D) PIpIOAy
lamod pue 1y31q Ay assaned |

39



(se'zegT) S (€T°696) $ (29°€001) $ (¢L0052) S (19°€69) $ (ev'1SL) $ (91°€€6) S Jawolsn) [ersnpu| a3esany
(sLes) $ (stes) S (s€'sS) S (LE'TY) $ (sz'8¢) S (br'TY) S (9t'1S) $ Jawolsn) puewaq [eldJawwo) agelany
(€L'8) $ (¢g9) $ (s59) $ (68) $ (€S) $ (06'1) $ (60'9) $ Jawoisn) [epssWwWo) agelany
(8s°€) $ (097) S (692) $ (100) S (98°T) $ (102 $ (052) $ Jawoysn) |enuspisay afesany
ST119 ¥INOLSND NO LOVdINI TYNNNY

(0605000°0) ¢ (£0L€000'0) ¢ (858£000°0) ¢ (8682000'0) § (£692000°0) $ (2€62000°0) S (099€000°0) $ 218y A19n009Y 1507 92INITS 19MOd Uo eduw|
99'TE0V6T LS'809°0VT €0°TT'SYT £8'S78'80T T6°€£9°00T T1'720'60T 15'68€'SET ERITEYCINTG
06'9€€'SST'T 98'€69'€T1'C 8€'STS'T60C ¥9'6.'T90°C 26'77S'TE0T 65'669'T00'C YT'CIETL6'T 10B1U0D JBMOJ 3SeYINd
GS'89€6VE'T €V'T0EY9T'T 18'LTT'8€CT 05'029'0LT'T ¥8'8ST'CET'C TLTTL0TT'T S9'TOL'LOT'T 150D 19x4B N
L98'vE £40'SE 6TT'SE 96€'s¢E €15'SE 7sL'se T€6'SE (ymw) uonelausn paydadxy
SL1SOJ HIMOd 3SVYHIUNd NO LOVdINI TYNNNY

¥£90'0 S 9v90°0 $ S€90°0 $ €T90°0 $ 66500 $ 06500 $ 18S0°0 ) (umv 19d 350D) Jer0L
6000°0 $ 60000 S 60000 S 60000 S 60000 $ 60000 S 60000 S }paJ) ASuau3 ajgemausy
1ST0°0 $ ¥ST00 $ ¥ST0°0 $ €ST00 $ 75100 $ TSTO0 $ 1ST00 $ 150D Aypeden
€150°0 $ €8%0°0 $ €L¥0°0 S TIS¥00 $ 8E¥0°0 $ 0EV0'0 $ LT¥00 $ 150D Aduaug
102 0102 6£02 8€0¢ LE0T 9€07 SE0T 1e3 10e43U0D

14 (114 6T 8T LT 9T ST ¥Y10S 40 LSOO a3dIONY

810 Jaquiaydas

ddIAl 10} JB[OS - 91U JOMO( BSBYIING/ISOD PIPIOAY
Jamod pue 3ysi A1D asienel]

40



(95'veT0E) S (80°9¥¥T) S (zoovv'T) S (z8ver'T) S (L¥'0Ev'T) S Jawo3sn) |epasnpul a8etany
(2€'199'1) S (SL'6L) S (Tv'6L) S (€1°64) S (68'8L) S Jawolsn) puewaq [elawWwo) a3elany
(£5'96T) S (vv'6) $ (ov'e) $ (9¢g'6) $ (€€'6) $ J3WO0ISN) [B1042WWO) afelany
(¢L708) $ (88°€) $ (98€) S (v8°€) $ (€8°€) $ Jawolsn) [enuapisay agesany
$1119 Y3WOLSND NO LOVdINI TYNNNY

(sees000'0) ¢ (oovs000'0) S (Lovs000'0) $ (8T¥S000'0)  $ 91ey AJ19n029Y 150D 991AIBS Jamod uo 1edw

SP'T89°0LE Y 06°£08'602 76°LT6'80T L8'ELT'0T ¥6°' TS L0T dduaIBa
€6'VSEEPTSY ¥9'¥69'982'C 0T'€2T€ST'T Yy v0°02C'C WISYL8TT 1oeAUOD JBMOd Bseydind
8E'9€0VTS TS ¥5205°96%'C €0'TS029¥'C TE'8TT'BLY'T 9€'€66'V6ET 150D 1331eN
T¥6'L06 SLT'YE LYE'VE 0TS'vE €69'7€ {(umw) uonessusn pazoadxy
[el0L S1S0D HIMOd ISYHIUN NO LOVdINI TYNNNY
TELO0 $ LTLO0 $ €0L0°0 $ 06900 S (ymy 1ad 350J) [e30L

60000 $ 60000 $ 60000 $ 60000 S HpauD Agiaug s|qemausy

¥ST0°0 $ ¥S10°0 $ €ST00 $ TST00 $ 150D Aypede)

£950°0 $ ¥550°0 S TvS00 S 62500 S 350D A8Jau3

S0 02 €02 (44114 JeaA 10e43U0)

14 vz €T (44 YV10S 40 LSO aIAIOAY,

810 1aqwiaydas
ddIA 10} 1e|0S - 3211d JaMOd 9SBY2INd/1S0D) PapIOAY
1amod pue 1y Ay asianed]

41



& ; \ 4 g
Michigan Public Power Agency

ENERGY SERVICES PROJECT
TRANSACTION AUTHORIZATION

This Transaction Authorization (“Authorization”) is made and entered into as of
.2018, by and between MICHIGAN PUBLIC POWER AGENCY (“MPPA”), a
body corporate and politic of the State of Michigan, created pursuant to 1976 PA 448 and
(the “Participant™).

WHEREAS, MPPA was organized under Act 448 to provide a means for those Michigan
municipalities which are members of MPPA to secure electric power and energy for their present
and future needs; and

WHEREAS, on March 11, 2009, the MPPA Board of Commissioners by action in open
meeting created the Energy Services Project; and

WHEREAS, one of the services allowed under the Energy Services Project is that a
Participant may agree to have MPPA enter into Power Purchase Commitments to meet a portion
of the Participant’s load requirements; and

WHEREAS, the service covered by this Authorization is a Power Purchase Commitment
under the Energy Services Agreement between the Participant and MPPA (“Energy Services
Agreement”):

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements

herein contained, it is agreed by and between the parties hereto as follows:

Section 1. Solar Power Supply Agreements

MPPA’s Solar Power Supply Agreement for the Solar facility located in Shiawassee
County, Michigan is with Assembly Solar, LLC. The Solar Power Supply Agreement for the
Solar facility located in either Lenawee County or Calhoun County, Michigan is with Invenergy
Solar Development North America, LLC. For the terms of each respective Agreement, MPPA
will allocate a pro rata portion of MPPA’s rights and obligations contained in each Agreement to
the Participant as provided in this Transaction Authorization.

809 Centennial Way - Lansing, MI 48917 - Phone: 517.323.8919 - Fax: 517.323.8373 - WWW.Mmpower.org

42




Section 2. Delivery Point

The delivery point for the solar power will be located at each of the solar facility’s
interconnection points with the regional transmission organization.

Section 3. Term

The term of the Power Purchase Commitment will begin upon the declared commercial
operation date of each facility, currently estimated to begin January 1, 2021 and continue for 25
years thereafter.

Section 4. Amount

The Participant is allocated a percentage of output from each of the facilities as shown
below.

Approximate Installed Allocation
Capacity Percentage
22.0 MW 24.4%

Section 5. Product

Upon commercial operation of each respective solar facility, MPPA will transfer to each
Participant the Participant’s allocated pro rata share of the output of the solar facilities, as
described below.
Section 6. Price

Participants will pay to MPPA a maximum rate of $43.75 per MWh delivered in year 1
depending on actual generation from each facility. This maximum rate will escalate by 2% each

year thereafter.

Section 7. Energy Services Agreement

This Authorization for the purchase power commitments is subject to the terms and
provisions of the Energy Services Agreement, including the MPPA Energy Risk Management
Policy contained in Exhibit 2 thereto. In the event the terms of this Authorization conflict with
the Energy Services Agreement, the provisions of the Energy Services Agreement shall control.

Section 8. Evidence

Authority of the Participant’s Authorized Representative to execute this Authorization is
evidenced through the Participant resolution passed appropriately by the Participant’s governing
body or through the meeting minutes of the Participant’s governing body where approval was
granted to the Authorized Representative to execute this Authorization.

809 Centennial Way - Lansing, MI 48917 - Phone: 517.323.8919 - Fax: 517.323.8373 - Wwww.mpower.org

43




Section 9. Effectiveness

This Transaction Authorization and the associated Purchase Power Commitment is not
effective until MPPA has received sufficient MPPA member participation to enable the solar
facilities in Section 1 to proceed.

Authorized Representative

By

Its

809 Centennial Way - Lansing, MI 48917 - Phone: 517.323.8919 - Fax: 517.323.8373 - Www.mpower.org

44



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 25, 2018

TRAVERSE CITY
LIGHT & POWER

To: Light & Power Board

From: Tim Arends, Executive Director

Date: September 18, 2018

Subject: Hickory Hills Recreational Area Improvement Project

Enclosed is a request from Mary Colburn, City Manager, for financial participation from TCL&P
in the lighting component of the Hickory Hills Recreational Area Improvement Project in the
amount of $154,000. This consists of $130,000 for ski slope lighting and $24,000 for parking lot
lighting.

Marty Colburn will be in attendance at the meeting to present this request and to answer any
questions from the Board.

If the Board would like to approve to financially participate in the Hickory Hills Recreational Area
Improvement Project, the following motion would be appropriate:

MOVED BY , SECONDED BY o,

THAT THE BOARD APPROVES FUNDING THE LIGHTING COMPONENT OF THE
CITY OF TRAVERSE CITY’S HICKORY HILLS RECREATIONAL AREA
IMPROVEMENT PROJECT IN THE NOT TO EXCEED AMOUNT OF $154,000.

45



R . GOVERNMENTAL CENTER
The City of Traverse City 400 Boardman Avenue
Traverse City, Ml 49684
s . (231) 922-4440
Office of the City Manager (231) 922-4476 Fax

tcmanage@traversecitymi.gov

September 18,2018

Traverse City Light & Power Board of Directors
c/o Mr. Tim Arends, TCLP Director = -
1131 Hastings St. ST B
Traverse City, Ml 49686

Re: Request for Participation in Hickory Hills Electrical Site Work

The City of Traverse City is working on improvements to the city-owned Hickory Hills
Recreation Area. This ski area is dedicated to teaching youth how to ski, as well as
enjoy and experience other winter activities. Providing healthy outdoor activities is an
important element of the City's commitment to the well-being of our citizens. -

The City is seeking collaboration with area resources, including Traverse City Light and
Power, for the lighting component of the Hickory Hills Recreational Area improvement
project. The City Engineer’s office has provided an itemized project materials listing
(attached). The estimates for the ski slope lighting are approximately $130,000.00, and
parking lot lighting is approximately $24,000.00, for a total of $154,000.00. B

As you are probably aware, this project has elicited the collaboration of numerous
partners, and has generated well over $2 million “in kind” and financial contributions, as
well as City participation with an estimated $2.0 million. Some of _thesg partners are:

TCLP

Cherryland Electric

Consumers Energy

Low Bid Contractor

Electrical Contractor In-Kind

City Staff

Electrical Supply Companies (All-Phase, Schneider, Kendall, Standard, etc.)
Electrical Workers Union

s o

The City respectfully requests that Traverse City Light & Power, as a City Department,
continue that partnership with collaboration on these electrical projects within the scope
of the project. G e me ey r Sy T DL el el e T T

46




Traverse City Light & Power Board of Directors
c/o Mr. Tim Arends, TCLP Director
Page Two

Hickory Hills historically was one of the first electrically lit ski slopes in the Nation,
providing a new opportunity for night time skiing. It has served generations of Traverse
City residents well. It is important that that this opportunity for healthy outdoor activity
continues. At this time, I'm respectfully requesting that this item be forwarded and
placed on the agenda for the Tuesday, September 25, 2018, meeting of the Board of
Directors for Traverse City Light & Power. | will be in attendance at that meeting to
answer any questions the Board may have regarding the project.

Your consideration and support regarding this request is greatly appreciated.
Sincerely,

Vi

Martin A. Colburn
City Manager

MAC/kas

pc:  Mr. Tim Lodge, City Engineer
Mr. Bill Twietmeyer, Treasurer -

Att.

47




110} abeg o ol e
wsunredaq Busauibuy
Aygesmauy jo iy
(00vo'e2) $ M Iwsu Ko
8900675 § ¥EON0'ES $ VLESL'9S $ 00°004'8€ $ 0024109} $ ¥2ay9 BupyBy 1voiang
009§ 05591 $ (oovez'sl) & osesy'se $ ¥ $ 0096972 $ Bup(ei Mous [nioigng
00069 § 001667 $ 00'156'6 $ . $ 000082 $ Sy MaUS [=j01ng
0SS § 0SS $ 00°095's $ 00°007' $ 0005672 $ Ruo107 Bupued Bupybn imaians
8169E'62L  § WYSLYIS $ (ooois'sl ¢ preshsy $ 00'0022€ $ 00°Z22'5E} $ Kuo sedois Bunybi je1oians
(sg'gr2'80s) $
8981512 $ (89:281'72) $
00504} $ 0000t
00081 00081 - 00°00°¢ 00002¢ AOI0d JAILDILOYd SHINMO] NSt 209
$ 00082 00052 = 000052 000052 3ONVHNSNI|  WnsTfL 109
00'5.9 0059 $] - 00'000'9 000009 sanog]  Wnsi 009
oud [moy]  edud hun| oaudisolf  eaudyun| udimol]  soudun| smoL-ans ooud (wor] _ 9dudwun| swa jo uopduosag) wun] Apisa] Conwey
JINVUNSNI GNV SONOS
051159 { 00'09'41 $ 00'00%'S 000057 $ 000567 TV10L
00002 e § 00062 0oy §| = 00002Y 00009 J1OHANYH VAL 90§
- 00000 0 B 00005¢ 05¢ 34VdS 1INAN0D .2 L4[o00r 50§
. 00002'F 0y s 000059 059 HOLINANOI HLM LINANOD 12 14[000 b0§
00007 0000¥ £ 00052 00082 ONVYLIN3 1V 310d JHOIT ONILSIX3 LOINNOD) va[k £09
. 00020'} 0002} - 00008} 001008 Y0 V 3JAL INLXI4 FTONIS TIVISNI vals 205
0518 STy g . 00007y 0000, 840 V IdAL JUNIXI4 TIONIS HSINMAA valo 105
S|~ s oooov's  § [ 0000r'S 00008 $]00005y  $]00005% 0005 (10041 3104 AOOM M3N TIVASNI val9 005
ooudiwior]  eaudyun| adudioy]  edudiiun| apdimol| oudwun| simor-ans oudiwol]  edudun) $W9)| JO UoRdLIseq “_,_m_- Ao s3] oNway
S8L10-92/8100-LTM1
[- § | roeer's9 $ $ | rzszLss 00'00£7¢  § ] 00'00£'2€ $ 0005222 §|00'91L'05) $ TVIOL
00'501'9 $|oosor'9 ¢ 005022 owosors  $| - s|_- $ 000052 $ | 000052 3d07S ASTIVA LV TENYd NOLLNERILSIA 1¥INLOT T vak 1y
00950 sfoozsz ¢ » - $ 00°086'L $ | 00'sez 4101 310d GQOOM HSIN¥N va[ee oz
- $ Y2096} 9586y § 3 $ 000089} $ | 00009 $310d 5_8 (%
GOOM 304 HOLIMS 193NNOOSIA 'LINANOD *(S1X08 NOILONNF TIVASNI ANV HSINNNA
- 000vLE 000} 00°00v'y 00002 "INV MONS ¥04 Tv.5303d TvOIN1OT13 LOINNOD Uez [
z 00962} 817 . 00H0'vh [(F3 SL411 ONV ONDIVI MONS 404 TyIM ANG LOTHIA MOTd HO HONZL va[zz0L 2
- 00004y €602} 0002 0008 avd ININdINOI .2} 135[92 _«s
= . 00002 00002 3d01S NI HON38 AYVHOJA3 L IAOWIY ONV LONYLSNOD) VAl [
- 0005Y 0005y $] : 00002 00002 ONITING FONVNILNIVIV OL SLINOUID ONILHOIT LO3NNOY|  Wns[y lozy
= 0005’} 0005¢ 00052’} 00052 HIMOL L3I INS NO (S)LHOI TIVASHI 6Ly
00'99¥'c 0099 § 00990' 00990° 00'000% 00000'% 3d01S AZ1TVA HO4 ONILHOIT¥O04 T3NVd TvORLOI [
- 0018’8 [ - 005042} [ ONILHOI 404 JIM 9N A¥NG LOTMIA TIVLSNI L4loege Y
05498 743 $ B : | 002976 060 ONILHOIN HO TUIM OM AMNG 1O3HIA HSINNA 140898 9ly
- 00009 00009 § * 00'009 00009 9 IJALTINIXIS TTdML TIVISHI Siy
616067 616067 § e - 00'00€’E 00'00EE 0 3dAL ANLIXI T1dRL HSINNNA [
- 00000 0000r  § v 00'000'% 0000¢ 0 3dAL 3UN1XI T1EN0A TIVASNI [N
09 ¥EE6) [ § 0000022 000027 0 3dAL T4N1XI4 319N00 HSINYNA [0
- 00°000't 0002 $ - 00°000°t 00002 0 3dAL 34NIXI3 TIONIS TIVASN Wy
S98k8Y €696 § < - 00°005' 00001} 0 3dAL TuNLXI4 TIONIS HSINYN [}
- 00008 00002 § 000024 001008 80 V 3dAL N1XI4 TIONIS TIVISHI 60%
001857 TS § s - 000087 00002 Y0 V 3dAL UNLXIS TTONIS HSINUNA 807
- $ - - $ 0000L2¢  ${00009'12 00008 0008222 §{ 000008 00005'} (o~ NIV3L T1v) 310d GOOM MIN TTVASNI 107
: 000042 00052 00052 10Ny 3104 GOOM MIN TIVASNI %0y
. 00'00%'8 | 00000 00000t (40NYL) FHNIXI4 ONILSHE HLM 310d MIN TIVISNI 50y
~ v [ 00005 00005 T10d ONILSIXZ NO STUNLXI4 1OTIATY [
- : 00000t 00000} STAINIXIA LOFYIATY ANV T10d LHOI ILYI0TRY 807
00928'9 00°€2¥'8 00'€2Y'8 000052 000052 ONIYW MONS-TIVHL SHOVI 404 13NVd TVORIL0313 207
00'}5€7 001562 00'156° 00°156° - 000052 000057 S13713d018 ASTIVA 404 BNVd TYoM 19T 13| V0¥
00'8L'y 006LLY 006469 006L€'9 000082 000052 ONDIV MONS-3d0TS ATTIVA 04 TINVd TYONL0T13 00
ooud o] edyd yun soud o] adpud Hun odud (wiol]  eoudyun| simoL-ans oud oy aduduun SWo JO Uofdpasag Ao .E‘ “oN Wy}
STVINILYH YIMOd B ALYIOYd WSY l_ ¥3MOd 99 |_ UL

IOM 21§ [8914103]3 POIeIay PUE papung uei9
e8Iy UOJEaI00Y S[[IH KI0YOIH

48




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 25,2018

TRAVERSE CITY
LIGHT & POWER

To: Light & Power Board

From: Tony Chartrand, Systems Engineer

Date: September 19, 2018

Subject: Parsons Switching Station Project — Construction Contract Award

Four bidders attended the prebid meeting and thus were eligible to bid on this project. On
September 19, 2018, three bids for the Parsons Switching Station Project were received
and opened. The following are the results:

Contractor Amount

Kent Power $1,273,704.00
Hydaker-Wheatlake $1,403,974.00
Newkirk $1,180,684.00
Rahorn No Bid

These costs are approximately 20% above GRP’s estimate. After reviewing the estimate
and comparing it to the received unit list included in the bid it was evident much of the 69kV
work was not included in the original estimate. Staff will be reviewing and updating the
Barlow Switch Station estimate to ensure nothing has been missed in that estimate.

After review by staff and GRP Engineering it is recommended the contract be awarded to

the low bidder Newkirk Electric, Inc. in the amount of $1,180,684.00. GRP Engineering’s
letter of recommendation is attached for your review.

MOVED BY , SECONDED BY )

THAT THE BOARD AUTHORIZES THE CHAIRMAN AND SECRETARY TO EXECUTE A
CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF $1,180,684.00 WITH NEWKIRK
ELECTRIC, INC. FOR THE PARSONS SWITCHING STATION PROJECT; SUBJECT TO
APPROVAL AS TO SUBSTANCE BY THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND TO FORM BY
GENERAL COUNSEL; AND FURTHER AUTHORIZES THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO

APPROVE CHANGE ORDERS IN THE BEST INTEREST OF THE UTILITY.

49



GRP

Engineering, Inc.

Power Utility & Electrical Engineering

September 19, 2018
18-0929.01

Mr. Daren Dixon

Operations Manager
Traverse City Light & Power
1131 Hastings Street
Traverse City, MI 49686

RE: Parsons Switch Station
Construction Bid Evaluation & Recommendation

Dear Daren:

GRP Engineering, Inc. has completed our evaluation of the Construction bids received for the Parsons
Switch Station project. Of the four (4) vendors invited to submit bids, three (3) bids were received.
Newkirk Electric submitted the low bid in the amount of $1,180,684.00. A complete bid tabulation is

attached to this letter.

Vendor Total
Kent Power $1,273,704.00
Newkirk Electric $1,180,684.00
Hydaker Wheatlake $1,403,974.00
Rauhorn Electric NO BID

(Low Bid)

Newkirk Electric submitted a complete and conforming bid. GRP Engineering, Inc. sees no reason not
to accept Newkirk’s bid. Please contact me should you have any questions regarding this evaluation.

Sincerely,
GRP Engineering, Inc.

] AN~

Nicholas A. Winsemius
Project Engineer

Enclosures

cc: Traverse City Light & Power
Mr. Tony Chartrand

6290 Jupiter Ave NE Suite D

Belmont, MI 49306

P: 616.942.7183 www.grp-engineering.com
F: 231.439.9698

459 Bay Street
Petoskey, MI 49770
P: 231.439.9683
F: 231.439.9698

50



810¢/61/6 uondnNAsuo) AM69 suosled 10'6260-81

SNJWSSUIAA Y SE[OYOIN

N -

au| ‘Burleaulbul 4o

‘peal pue pauado Ajoliqnd a1em ulaiay paje|nge) spiq sy} ‘gL0og ‘61 Jequialdes Aepsaupapp Uo swiy [B20] “WBQQ: | | Je Yy} AlNe o} si sy

alg ON OIMLOT3 NYOHNVY
S3A 00'v.26'€0o¥ LS %01 AMVILVIHM HIMVAAH
S3IA 00'¥89'081°1L$ %01 ORILOTTA MAUMMAN
S3A 00'702€22'L$ %01 H3MOd LNIA
SYUVINTY L# INNAN3IAAv J01dd dig aNod aig s¥3aaid
3Svd JOAN3A V.10l
0..6% IIN ‘A3MS0OL3d 98967 IIN ‘ALID ISYIAVHL
133418 Avd 65t NOILONYLSNOD - AYVA AM69 13341S SONILSVH LELL
*ONI ‘ONIMIINIONT d¥D NOILVYLS HOLIMS SNOSYVd HIMOd @ LHOIT ALID ISYIAVHL
*433NIONT HIANMO

NOLLYINGVL dig

1
Lo



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 25, 2018

TRAVERSE CITY
LIGHT & POWER

To: Light & Power Board
From: Tim Arends, Executive Director
Date: September 3, 2018

Subject: On Bill Financing

Staff recently had a conference call with Mary Templeton, Executive Director of Michigan Saves
to discuss an opportunity with the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA). (Michigan
Saves is a non-profit created for the primary purpose to stimulate and support investment in energy
efficiency and renewable energy systems and measures in Michigan homes, businesses, and public
buildings.) The USDA is currently offering a 0-3% loan program for utilities to drawdown on for
the purpose to administer an on-bill financing program.

The first step in moving forward with the program is to submit a letter of intent to the USDA. A
draft of the letter of intent is included within the board packet. If the letter of intent is approved
the utility would move forward to the application process. While the utility is going through this
process, staff is concurrently working on other items such as if the utility billing system can handle
billing loan payments and talking with City of Holland and Mary Templeton more on specifics of
how City of Holland’s program was set up and operates. A high-level summary of City of
Holland’s program is included within the board packet for your review.

Additionally, staff will be attending a meeting for the Northwest Michigan area at Cherryland
Electric to discuss current program developments by the Michigan Public Service Commission on
the on-bill financing program.

Staff is seeking feedback on whether the Board believes this is a program staff should dedicate
time in moving forward and implementing. As this program would help achieve the utility’s
strategic plan goal of “Implement additional tools that are in the best interest of the utility to
achieve energy savings that manage load growth and are aimed at reducing on-peak demand.”

52



September 19, 2018

Mr. Christopher A. McLean

Assistant Administrator, Electric Program Rural Utilities Service
1400 Independence Avenue, SW Stop 1560

Washington, DC 20250-1560

RE: Intent to Apply for a Rural Energy Savings Program Loan

This letter confirms that Traverse City Light and Power, a municipal utility, (“TCL&P”) intends to seek a Rural
Energy Savings Program loan from the Rural Utilities Service pursuant to the Notice Funding Availability
(NOFA) for Fiscal Year 2018 (FY2018) published in the Federal Register 83 FR 38273 on August 6, 2018.
TCL&P hereby represents that it meets all the requirements as specified in the NOFA and herewith submits the
mandatory information required to comply with the first step of the loan application process.

TCL&P intends to submit a complete application on or before the due date specified in the NOFA for step-2 of
the process and commits to diligently collaborate with the RUS General Field Representative to complete the
application in a timely manner. TCL&P acknowledges that RUS may not consider our loan application complete
(Step-2) if we fail to provide the information requested by RUS in its screening process (Step-1).

Applicant’s Profile and Point of Contact

TCL&P is a municipal utility organized under the laws of State of Michigan, on September 30, 1912 with its
principal place of business located in 1131 Hastings Street, Traverse City, Michigan 49686. The DUN and
Bradstreet (D&B) DUNS number for TCL&P is 556788958 and our tax identification number is 38-6004740.
TCL&P will be a new RUS borrower.

TCL&P serves City of Traverse City and part of four surrounding townships, Garfield, Elmwood, Peninsula
and East Bay Townships. Population and meters served are below.

Entity Population Meters Served
City of Traverse City 15,326 9,395
Garfield Township 17,436 1,788
East Bay Township 11,472 470
Peninsula Township 3.773 232
Elmwood Township 4,501 56

TCL&P has net assets in the amount of $73,797,420 It is hereby affirmed that TCL&P has not been in
receivership or bankruptcy or under a workout agreement over the last 10 years. TCL&P holds operating
reserves in the amount of $9,500,000. A copy of TCL&P balance sheet for the last 3 years is submitted with this

53



letter of intent. TCL&P intends to be the legal borrower.

The point of contact during the application process will be Karla Myers-Beman, Controller, who has been duly
authorized to carry out the necessary actions to complete the RESP loan application. Karla can be contacted at
1131 Hastings Street, Traverse City, Michigan 49686, 231-932-4560, kmyersbe@tclp.org. Additional
information about TCL&P is available at www.tclp.org.

Project Description

An on-bill loan program is a financial collection mechanism where financing for clean energy improvements is

repaid by the utility customer, such as a homeowner or commercial building owner, on their monthly utility bill.

On-bill programs can:
1. Expand access to customers with tarnished credit or low- to moderate- and fixed-income individuals
who need low, fixed monthly payments

2. Provide greater affordability through longer loan terms than traditional loan programs, which make
comprehensive energy efficiency, water efficiency, and renewable energy improvements more
affordable for homeowners

3. Increase customer ease by integrating the energy improvement and payment process into customers’
existing billing

As 0f 2017, 32 states have legislation related to on-bill loan programs or utilities that have implemented (or are
currently developing) on-bill programs. Michigan passed legislation that enables municipal utilities (Public Act
408 0f 2014) and investor-owned utilities (Public Act 341 and Public Act 342 of 2016) to develop residential
on-bill programs.

Details about the TCLP On-bill Loan Program are provided in Table 1.

Table 1. Loan Product Details

Eligible properties Single-family (one- to four-unit) homes within the utility
G service territory.
Loan type Unsecured loan.

Notice of the loan is recorded with the register of deeds for
- the county in which the property is located, allowing the loan
- obligation to stay with the property and become binding for
o _ o future customers contracting electric service to the property.
Repayment mechanism Customers will pay back the loan through a per—meter charge
on their monthly utility bill. The payment is considered part
of the charges for electric or gas services to the property. The
 utility has the authority to disconnect the customer’s utility
service for nonpayment of the loan.

T o E— $2,000-830.000
Loan term Ten years or useful life of the 1mprovement ‘whichever is
L less.
Loan rates ' Not to exceed 3% APR. Fixed rate with no prepayment
. penalty.

54



- Key underwriting criteria Must have 12 consecutive months of utility bill payments
without any late charges.
No delinquent taxes, bankruptcies, foreclosures, or
repossessions greater than $1,000 within the last 12 months
: e (from discharge) and no unsatisfied money judgments.
Loan agreement Loans are made directly by utility, through program
- administrator and fiduciary Michigan Saves, using funds
- provided by the U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA)
through the Rural Energy Savings Program.

Staff and Contractor Credentials

TCLP is a community-owned not for profit public power utility that serves more than 12,500 homes and
businesses in Traverse City and part of the outlying areas in Blair, East Bay, Elmwood, Garfield, Paradise and
Peninsula Townships.

Michigan Saves is a nonprofit dedicated to making energy improvements easier for all Michigan energy
consumers. To accomplish this, Michigan Saves operates as a green bank, making affordable financing and
incentives available through grants and partnerships with private-sector lenders and energy providers. Michigan
Saves’ financing portfolio includes programs for residential, commercial, and municipal customers, and
supports energy-efficiency, geothermal, and solar photovoltaic (PV) projects. Michigan Saves assists the City of
Holland and the Holland Board of Public Works with management of the Holland On-bill Loan Program, which
launched in 2016. Michigan Saves also authorizes and monitors a network of contractors, recognizing those
with advanced training, and provides technical assistance for customers and contractors.

Michigan Saves is governed by an 18-member board of directors and a special policy advisor appointed by the
Michigan Public Service Commission. Since its inception, Michigan Saves has financed more than $145 million
in residential and commercial loans through our network of authorized lenders.

The utility will contract with Michigan Saves to serve as the fiduciary and program administrator. Michigan
Saves will perform the following tasks:
e Manage and oversee provider contracts (loan originator and servicer)

e Create program implementation guidelines and processes

e Provide a credit enhancement, known as a loan loss reserve (if required)

e Recruit, train, and manage installation contractors and energy auditors to provide services under the

program

e Develop and implement an outreach plan and a branding/marketing strategy

e Hold the loan agreement for the utility

e Conduct customer satisfaction surveys and quality assurance inspections

e Collect metrics and evaluate program effectiveness
All energy-saving or renewable energy improvements that qualify for financing must be installed by an
authorized contractor. Michigan Saves authorizes and manages the network of contractors, who must meet
certain minimum requirements, including appropriate insurance, licensure, and program training.

On-bill Loan Program Implementation Plan
Marketing Strategy

We expect that many homeowners will learn about the On-bill Loan Program from authorized contractors and
the outreach efforts of the utility. In some cases, customers will seek authorized contractors via Michigan

59



Saves’ online searchable database. In other cases, authorized contractors will promote their affiliation with the
program through marketing materials. Regardless of the flow of contact between a customer and an authorized
contractor, the enrollment process remains the same.

Michigan Saves will provide authorized contractors with a marketing toolkit that stipulates marketing
guidelines and resources to help contractors promote the on-bill loan program to customers. The toolkit includes
information, such as permitted and required uses of logos and other branding requirements, contractor
identification cards, and sample copies of marketing materials. Contractors can also follow the branding
guidelines to develop their own customized marketing materials with the program logo.

Relending Process
The On-bill Loan Program has a straightforward process for loaning funds to qualified consumers.

Step one: The customer identifies an authorized contractor at www.MichiganSaves.org.

Step two: The authorized contractor performs an energy assessment and identifies the qualifying energy
improvements. As part of the energy assessment, the contractor should perform test-in diagnostics, unless
asbestos or other hazardous materials are present in the home.

Step three: The customer completes the loan application online or sends a paper copy by mail and receives a
decision. The customer will be notified, in writing, if their loan application is approved, conditionally approved,
or denied. If approved, the customer will sign the loan documents and schedule the project.

Step four: The contractor installs the equipment, according to the workplan, and the contract with the customer.
A test-out procedure, such as a blower door test, may also be conducted to ensure improvements were installed

properly.

Step five: The contractor obtains the customer's signature on a certificate of completion (COC) and sends the
COC to the loan originator. This triggers payment to the contractor. Payment is made directly to the contractor,
minus an administrative fee, and normally arrives within seven to ten days.

Step six: The contractor logs into their account with Michigan Saves and creates a new specification sheet (spec
sheet). The contactor attaches the signed COC to this spec sheet and submits to Michigan Saves.

Step seven: The customer repays the loan via direct billing on their monthly utility bill from the participating
rural electric service provider.

Step eight: The retail electric service provider returns loan principal to USDA.

The entire relending process can be broadly summarized in Figure 1 below.

Figure 1. Relending Process

56



Below is a sample fund schedule for the On-bill Loan Program.
This fund schedule assumes the following:

e All of the loans go to term (ten years)

e  There are no defaults

o  The utility pays for all setup and annual administrative costs with internal funds and/or the interest

earned on the loans

o The annual administrative costs include an annual loan origination management fee, an annual
fee for the program administrator, and a per-loan fee to record and discharge the loans at the
county register of deeds

e The monthly loan servicing is done by the utility

e The customer pays the loan documentation fee that is assessed by the loan originator
e  All cost estimates within the fund schedule are speculative and could change based on loan volume and
value, and the number of tasks that the utility brings in-house (or contracts out)

Table 2. Sample Fund Schedule

Year Three

Year One Year Two Year Four Year Five Year Six Year Seven Year Eight Year Nine Year Ten Total
Number of Loans 20 30 40 50 50 50| 50, 50 50 50| «
Average Loan Value $ 7,500 | $ 7,500 $ 7,500 | $ 7,500 { $ 7,500 $ 7,500 $ 7,500 | $ 7,500 ¢ $ 7,500 $ 7,500
Setup Costs S 50,000.00 | $ S - S - $ - S - $ - $ $ S - $ 50,000
Annual Administrative Costs $ 46,400.00 | S 46,600.00 | $ 46,800.00 | $ 47,000.00 | $ 47,000.00 | $ 47,000.00 | $ 47,000,00 | $ 47,000.00 | $ 47,000.00 | $ 47,000.00 | S 468,800
Total Annual Costs| $ 96,400.00 | $ 46,600.00 | $ 46,800.00 | $ 47,000.00 | $ 47,000.00 | $ 47,000.00 | $ 47,000.00 { $ 47,000.00 | $ 47,000.00 S 47,000.00 | $ 518,800
Monthly Loan Payment (principal + interest) at 3% S 72421 $ 72421 $ 72421 S 7242 | $ 72421 $ 7242 | $ 72421 $ 72421 $ 72421 S 72.42
USDA Funds Loaned to Customers through On-bill Loan Program (annual)| $  150,000.00 { $  225,000.00 { $ 300,000.00 | $ 375,000.00 { $ 375,000.00 | $ 375,000.00 | $ 375,000.00 { $ 375,000.00 | $ 375,000.00 | $ 375,000.00 | $ 3,300,000
Annual Principal Returned to USDA| $ 13,059.53 | $ 33,046.05 | $ 60,170.24 | $ 94,649.20 | $ 130,176.87 | $ 166,785.15 | $ 204,506.91 { § 243,376.01 | $ 283,427.36 | $ 324,696.90 | $ 1,553,894
Annual Interest Earned by On-bill Loan Program| $ 4,321.40 | $ 10,406.29 | $ 18,043.97 | § 27,017.34 | $ 34,942.00 | § 41,786.05 | $ 4751663 | $ 52,099.86 | $ 55,500.86 | $ 57,683.65 | S 349,318
Total Principal +Interest| $ 17,380.93 | $ 43,452.34 | $ 7821420 | $§ 12166654 | $ 165118.87 [ $ 208,571.21 | $§ 252,023.54 | $ 295475.88 | $ 338,928.21| $ 382,380.55 | $ 1,903,212
Year 11 Year12 Year 13 Year 14 Year 15 Year 16 Year 17 Year 18 Year 19 Year 20 Total
Number of Loans - -
Average Loan Value $ - $ $ $ - S $ $ $ 1S $ $
Setup Costs $ - $ - S - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ $
Annual Administrative Costs $ 600.00 | $ 800.00 | $ 1,000.00 | $ 1,000.00 | $ 1,000.00 | $ 1,000.00 | $ 1,000.00 | $ 1,000.00 | $ 1,000.00 | $ $ 8,400
Total Annual Costs| $ 600.00 | $ 800.00 { $ 1,000.00 | § 1,000.00 | $ 1,000.00 | $ 1,000.00 | $ 1,000.00 | $ 1,000.00 | $ 1,000.00 | $ S 8,400
Monthly Loan Payment (principal + interest) at 3% $ 7242 1S 72421 $ 7242 | $ 7242 | $ 7242 | $ 7242 | $ 7242 | $ 7242 1S 7242 | $ $
USDA Funds Loaned to Customers through On-bill Loan Program (annual) | $ - $ - S - $ - S - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ $
Annual Principal Returned to USDA| $  316,950.94 | $ 300,158.42 | $ 274,044.18 | $ 238324.68 | $§ 20151874 | $ 163,593.31 | $ 124,514.35 | $ 84,246.76 | $ 42,754.40 | $ $ 1,746,105
Annual Interest Earned by On-bill Loan Program| $ 48,048.67 | $ 38,769.79 | $ 30,122.17 | $ 22,389.33 | $ 15,742.93 | $ 10,216.03 | $ 5,842.65 | $ 2,657.911$ 697.94 | $ $ 174,487
Total Principal +Interest| $  364,999.61 | S 338928.21 | $ 304,166.35 | $ 260,714.01 | § 217,261.68 | $ 173,809.34 | $ 130,357.01 | 86,904.67 | S 43,452.34 | $ $ 1,920,593

57



Evaluation, Measurement, and Verification of Energy and Utility Bill Savings
Michigan Saves will monitor the effectiveness and impact of the on-bill loan program. Key metrics
include:

e Number of loans

e Loan value (average and total)

e Energy savings (average and total)

When the contractor enters the energy improvements on the spec sheet, the annual and lifetime
energy savings are automatically calculated using the energy savings values in the Michigan
Energy Measures Database (MEMD). These are the same values used by regulated utilities to claim
energy savings for regulatory goals. As program administrator, Michigan Saves will report key
metrics monthly to the utility.

Eligible Energy-efficiency Improvements

Under the On-bill Loan Program, owners of residential buildings (four units or fewer), within the
utility’s service territory can finance any eligible energy-efficiency or renewable energy
improvement. Eligible improvements include any measure or piece of equipment with an ENERGY
STAR® label (unless otherwise noted) that has energy savings documented in the MEMD.

Homeowners may also finance the remediation of pre-existing environmental hazards or the repair
of physical and structural defects that create health and safety issues, so long as the remediation or
repairs necessary to allow for an appropriate efficiency measure and the cause(s) of the
environmental hazard or physical defect are addressed.

Table 3. Eligible Energy Improvements

Minimum Efficiency

Group Measures Rotine

Appliances Clothes washer, dishwasher, freezer, refrigerator =~ ENERGY STAR®
Air sealing and insulation (attic, crawlspace,
floor, joist, wall)
g Doors (exterior), skylights, and windows ENERGY STAR®
Bulding sbch Insulated mobile home skirting
Roofing (asphalt, metal, or membrane) SNERIC S BTARG oF
comparable
Asbestos abatement, electrical service upgrades,
e lead abatement, mold removal, oil tank removal,
safety
and radon abatement
Air-source heat pump, including mini-split ENERGY STAR®
(ductless) heat pump
. . Annual Fuel Utilization
B;S1i1§i silz)a;c)e heating, hot water, steam, wood Efficiency (AFUE) >
HVAC g 85%; 82%: 75%
‘ Central air conditioning (split system or package ENERGY STAR®
system)
Furnace (any fuel) ENERGY STAR®
Thermostat (programmable or Wi-Fi enabled)

58




Lighting LED lights
| Electric vehicle charging station Level Two
Geothermal system Elélelrgy Etficiency Ratie >
i{;:;ewable Solar PV
&y Water heater (solar thermal) Solar Factor > .50
Whole-home battery storage
Wind turbine
Water heating Water heater (any fuel) ENERGY STAR®

Lastly, TCL&P commits to immediately notify RUS in writing should we decide to withdraw
from consideration for the RESP loan before submitting the complete application.

Sincerely,

Tim Arends
Executive Director

Enclosures

1 The applicant will need to identify its service area by its service area map and identify whether it
serves customers in all or part of the population within the town or city and/or county boundaries.
Information needs to be provided as to the extent it serves all or part of the population within the
town or city and/or county boundaries. The applicant will need to identify/state/list how many meters
it serves its customers with, within its service area. If the service area of proposed borrower extends
beyond the town or city and/or county boundary, the number of meters within each of the service
boundaries needs to be stated/listed.

2 Project descriptions must not exceed 5 pages. Refer to the NOFA for details.




Holland

Energy Fund

Purpose

Holland On-Bill Loan Program

Program Summary | November 1, 2016

High up-front costs can be a significant challenge to investing in home energy improvements. A
program that provides affordable loans, which a customer can repay on their monthly utility bill, is
one way to overcome this cost barrier. Holland Energy Fund (HEF), a nonprofit corporation
facilitating and financing the Holland Community Energy Plan, created the On-Bill Loan Program to
help homeowners implement energy-efficiency and renewable energy improvements. For more
information, see www.hollandenergyfund.com

Loan Product Details

Eligible Properties

Location

Loan Type

Transferable

Eligible Improvements

Loan Amounts

Loan Term

Loan Rates

Repayment Mechanism

Key Underwriting Criteria

Loan Agreement

Structure/Minimum Standards

Single-family (one to four unit) homes. Rental/income properties are eligible
provided the landlord meets program requirements.

Homes must be within the city limits of the City of Holland. Homes within
Holland Charter Township and the rest of the Holland Board of Public
Works (HBPW) service area are not eligible.

Unsecured consumer loan. Notice of the loan is recorded with the county
register of deeds. Any unpaid amount can be added to property tax bill and
enforced through a tax lien foreclosure process.

Yes, if property is sold, the loan can stay with the property if agreed upon
by buyer.

Qualifying energy-saving home improvements, installed by an authorized
contractor. A whole-home energy assessment with diagnostic testing is
required for each financed project. Renewable energy measures are
permitted if the home has a Home Energy Score greater than eight (on a
ten-point scale).

$5,000-$30,000. Multiple loans per customer are allowed if the total
amount financed does not exceed the maximum allowable loan amount.
Multiple loans are consolidated into one loan at the current interest rate.

Up to 15 years or life of the measure, whichever is less.

4.99% interest rate for loan terms up to 120 months
5.99% interest rate for loan terms greater than 120 months

Customers repay the loan through a per-meter charge on the monthly HBPW
bill for electric services. The payment is considered part of the charges for
electric services to the property. There is no penalty for early repayment.

Twelve consecutive months with no late payments on electric utility bill
payment history; no delinquent taxes; no bankruptcies within three years
(from discharge), foreclosures, or repossessions greater than $1,000; no
unsatisfied money judgements.

The loan agreement is between Holland Energy Fund and the customer.
Upon completion of the energy efficiency improvements, HEF pays the
contractor directly and the loan payments begin.

60



Loan Application Process

@ The customer connects with a Michigan Saves authorized contractor working in the Holland On-Bill Loan
Program. See hollandenergyfund.com/on-bill-loan-program

@ The contractor completes an energy assessment, performs diagnostic testing, and prepares a report
a. Existing whole-home assessments can be used if done within the last 12 months
b. No test-in necessary if asbestos-containing material is found

c. If customer is seeking the 10 percent rebate from the Home Energy Retrofit program,
the assessment must be approved by the Holland residential energy advisor

@ The customer and contractor agree on work scope and the contractor explains the Holland On-Bill Loan
Program

a. If seeking the 10 percent rebate from the Home Energy Retrofit program, the residential energy advisor
must participate in the development of the work scope

The customer initiates the loan application process
a. Online application is preferred; paper application is also available
b. energyﬂnancesolutions.com/sites/energyﬂnancesoiutions.com/fi!es/pdfs/ho!!and—energy—fund—credit-app-ﬁllabie.pdf

The loan originator, Energy Finance Solutions (EFS), provides a loan decision

a. If pre-approved, EFS issues a conditional pre-approval letter to the customer
i. Conditional pre-approval letter indicates which documents must be provided to EFS to receive the approval
ii. Conditional pre-approval also subject to review of tax and utility repayment history and conformance with

program requirements
b. Once decumentation is provided by the customer, and the customer qualifies for the loan, EFS issues
an approval letter
c. If the customer is denied, EFS sends a denial letter stating the reason for denial and notifies the contractor

o

Upon approval, EFS sends the loan documents to the customer for signature

a. The customer takes the loan documents to the HEF office at Holland City Hall for signatures
and notarization

b. The customer has three days to cancel the loan by submitting a rescission notice to HEF. if the loan is not
cancelled, EFS notifies contractor that the work can proceed

The contractor completes work
a. if there is a change in the work scope, the customer or contractor must submit a change order to EFS
i. EFS will resend the loan documents to the customer for a signature

The customer signs a Michigan Saves Certificate of Completion and submits it to EFS
a. The contractor must provide the test-out documentation, when applicable

The loan is closed

HEF pays the contractor and records the loan with the county register of deeds

@6 @ 6

The customer repays the loan via monthly charge on the electric utility bill
a. Due date for entire utility bill, including loan payment, will be the 22nd of the month

Program Contacts

Anne Saliers m Peter Boogaart Todd Parker
Bpw Community Energy Services Manager e Residential Energy Advisor : Customer Service Manager
< (616) 355-1658 (616) 355-1364 : (517) 484-6474
asaliers@hollandbpw.com H&l}sﬂd p.boogaart@cityofholland.com tparker@michigansaves.org

61




